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LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors submut their annual report together with the audited financial statements of Legal & General Assurance
Society Limuted ('Society”) for the year ended 31 December 2010

Principal activities

Society 15 a composite insurance company authorised in the UK and has a number of operating subsidiaries The
principal activity of Society 1s life and pensions business The principal activities of Society’s main subsidiaries durning
the year were insurance and remnsurance A list of the pnincipal operating subsidiaries appears on page 27

Significant events during the year:

Internal reinsurance arrangement with the subsidiaries of Legal & General Amenica (LGA)

In December 2010, a reinsurance arrangement was established from LGA's subsidianes to the Society which replaced
the onginal reinsurance of this block of busmess from LGA’s subsidiaries to First Bnuish American Reinsurance
Company (FBARC) As secunty for the remsurance 1n accordance with US regulations, the Society placed assets of
$565m from the Shareholders Retaimned Capital (SRC) of the long term fund to US trusts

Review of business and future outlook

Society forms a matenal part of the activities of Legal & General Group Plc (‘'Group’) and on this basis the review of
business that 1s presented within Group's financial statements 1s not duplicated here This information can be found
within the Director's Report included within the Group's financial statements The 2011 economic ¢limate remains
uncertain but are confident that we are well positioned to exploit opportunities throughout the current economic cycle

Principal risks and uncertainties may be categorised as follows:
* Legislation and Regulation

* Financial Market and Economc Conditions

« Counterparty and Third Party Risks

» UK Financial Services Sector contagion nisks

* Mortality castastrophe and other assumption uncertainties

* Industry Change




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

A detailed review of Society's inherent exposures to market, credit, insurance, liquidity and operational risks, together
with the framework for their management and control 1s set out on pages 54 to 69 of the financial statements The
prnincipal nisks and uncertainties facing Society are

1) Legislation and Regulation

The markets in which the Society operates are highly regulated, with regulation defining the overall framework for the
design, marketing and distribution of products, the acceptance and administration of business, and the prudential capital
that regulated companies should hold Government fiscal policy may also influence the design of products, the retenuon
of existing business and the required reserves for future liabilities

The Society bases its busmess strategy upon prevailing regulation and legislaton, and known/anticipated change and
engages with regulatory and legislative authonties where appropriate to assist in the evaluation of change on the sector
and 1ts stakeholders

2) Financial Market and Economic Conditions

The Society holds a broad range of investment assets to meet the obligations ansing from writing insurance business
The performance and hgmdity of mvestment markets, interest rate movements and mflation can impact the value of
these assets as well as the value of the underlying obligations A potential mismatch of assets and liabilities may 1mpact
the earmings, profitability and the capual requirements of the Society Sigmificant falls 1n investment asset values can
also 1impact fee income from investment management activities, whilst broader economic conditions can influence the
purchase of retail financial services products and the peniod over which the business 1s retained

The Society seeks to match asset and hability cash flows to reduce the impact of changing economic conditions
Additionally, a range of nsk management strategies are used to manage volatility 1n returns from the investment of assets
and the broader effects of adverse market conditions The effect of market and econonmuc conditions upon fee mncome
and the timing of the purchase and retention of retail investment products are mtigated through the utilisation of a low
cost scalable business model and by mamtaiming a diversified portfolio of products

3) Counterparty and Third Party Risk

The Society 15 exposed to default nsk in respect of the 1ssuers of corporate debt and financial instruments, through
money market and reassurance transactions and as part of 1ts banking arrangements Third party nisk arises with regard
to reliance upon external suppliers of certain admnistration and IT development services

The Society seeks to lumut the potential exposure to loss from counterparty and third party fallure through setung robust
selectton criteria and exposure himuts covening factors such as counterparty financial strength, sectors and geography
Exposures against limuts are actively momtored, with trigger levels bemg set and management action being taken to pre-
empt loss from default events

4) UK Financial Services sector contagion risks

As a sigmficant participant 1n the UK retail financial services sector, the earnings of the Society are mfluenced by the
perception and confidence of the retail investor with the sector as a whole

Factors such as mvestment market performance, actions by regulators and shock events such as significant market
failures can impact the confidence of retail mvestors and the trmng of their purchase of financial service products
Society seeks to muitigate these nisks through differentiating its business model from that of its compeutors This includes
operating a diversified portfolio of businesses in the UK




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

5) Mortality catastrophe and other assumption uncertainties

Society writes sigmificant levels of immediate and deferred annuity business and protection business The wnting of
long term msurance business necessarily requires the setting of assumptions for long term trends 1n factors such as
mortality, persistency, valuation interest rates and credit defaults

The Society uses 1ts pricing capabilities to assess and charge an appropnate premium for known nisk factors, with stress
testing undertaken to vahdate the appropnateness of key assumptions However, scenarios such as a rapid advance n
medical science leading to sigmificantly enhanced annuitant longevity or an event causing widespread
mortality/morbidity, coupled with a rewnsurer default may impact profitability and capital Extreme shifts in financial
markets and in the broader economic environment may also require other assumptions to be recalibrated

6) Industry Change
The Society may not maximise opportuntties from structural and other changes wathin the financial services sector

The financial services sector continues to go through a period of change This presents a range of challenges as well as
opportunities to providers of sufficient scale such as the Society Significant changes in the markets 1n which we operate
may require the review and re-ahignment of elements of our business strategy A failure to be sufficiently responsive to
potenual change and understand the implication te our businesses, or the incorrect execution of change may impact the
achievement of our strategic objectives We seek to ensure we have market leading expertise 1n the core fields in which
we operate, and actively focus on retammng the best personnel with the knowledge to design and support our products,
and manage their evolution as market and consumer requirements change

Key performance indicators

The directors review a range of performance indicators in monitorning the performance of the Society with the following
regarded as key performance ndicators

Profit before tax - £515m (2009 £391m) - This measures the loss or profit 1n a single penod before deducting tax This
gives an 1sight 1nto the Society'’s ability to generate cash flows to support dividends during a period

Shareholder funds - £4,464m (2009 £4,120m) - This represents the assets that remain once all the Society’s liabihties
have been accounted for

Society regulatory capital surplus - £3,146m' (2009 £2,454m) - This 15 the dominant regulatory surplus capital
measure for Society

1 Figure extracted from draft unaudited regulatory returns

Further details of the Group's key performance indicators can be found 1n its published financial statements

Results for the year and dividend

The results for the year are set out on pages 9 to 10

A final dividend of £300m was paid 1n 2010 (2009 £154m) No interimm dividend was paid dunng the year (2009 Nil)




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT {CONTINUED)

Directorate

The directors of Society who served during the year, together with their dates of appomtment and resignation, where
appropnate, are shown below

T J Breedon (Chairman)

M J Bolton - resigned 24/06/2010
J M Bury

M I Gregory

G J Hoskin

} B Pollock

N D Wilson

Financial risk management objectives

Society's exposure to financial risk through its financial assets and liabilities 1s provided in detail n note 34 of the
financial statements

Creditors

Legal & General Group Plc agrees terms and conditions for 1ts business transactions with suppliers Payment 1s made 1n
accordance with these terms provided the supplier meets 1ts obligations As at 31 December 2010, the average number
of days of payments outstanding for the Legal & General Group of compames was 34 days (2009 33)

Directors' Indemnities and Insurance

As permitted by Articles of Association, the Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which 1s a qualifying third party
indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 The indemnity was 1n force throughout the
last financial year and 1s currently in force The ultimate parent company, Legal & General Group Plc, maintains an
appropriate level of Directors' and Officers’ liability insurance which 1s reviewed annually

Auditors

The Company has appointed PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent auditor

There 1s no requirement under the Companies Act or the Company's articles of association to hold an Annual General
Meetng or lay the Company's Report and Accounts before the shareholders

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Statemnent of Directors’ Responsibilities (continued)

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practce
(United Kingdom Accountung Standards and applicable law) Under company law, the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are sausfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Company for that period In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

« select suitable accounting pohcies and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and accounting esumates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether apphcable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject 10 any matenal departures disclosed and
explained 1n the financial statements,

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s tnappropriate to presume that the company will
continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other

urregularnties
The directors have comphed with the above requirements 1n preparning the financial statements
In accordance with Section 418, each director 1n office at the date the directors' report 1s approved, confirms that

(a) so far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

(b) he/she has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director 1n order to make himself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

By Order of the Board

oS D LL;A&MV

A D Farrhurst

On behalf of Legal & General Co Sec Limited
Company Secretary

15 March 2011




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LEGAL & GENERAL
ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Legal & General Assurance Society Limited for the year ended 31 December
2010 which compnse the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses,
the Reconcihation of Movements in Shareholders' Funds and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparanon 18 apphcable law and Unuted Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Diarectors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 5 and 6, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s
to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Ths report, including the opimmons, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compamies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may
come save where expressly agreed by our pnior consent 1n writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal musstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's circumstances and have
been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opimon the financial statements

= give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2010 and of 1ts profit for the year then
ended,

* have been properly prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce, and

¥

» have been prepared in accordance with the requrements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opiion the informanon given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' TO THE MEMBERS OF |
LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

‘We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companzes Act 2006 requires us to
report to you 1f, 1n our opmion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved
from branches not visited by us, or

+ the financial staternents are not 1 agreement with the accounung records arnd returns, or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

QMM

Richard Keers (Semor Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

15 March 2011




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Company Number 00166055

Techmcal account - long term business
Continuing operations
2010

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance Notes
Gross premums written 2(1)
Outward reinsurance premiums

Investment income and realised gains 3
Unrealised gains on mvestments 3

Other technical income, net of reinsurance
- profit ansing on Part VII transfer
- other

Claums incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid

- gross amount

- reinsurers' share

Change in the provision for claims
- gross amount 1
- remnsurers' share

Change n other technical provisions, net of reinsurance
Long term business provision, net of reinsurance

- gross amount 2,701

- remsurers’ share (2,342)
359

Change 1n other technical provisions, net of reinsurance

Techmical provistons for linked hiabilities 2,828

Net operating expenses 4

Investment expenses and charges 3

Other technical charges, net of reinsurance

Tax attributable to the long term business 5
Change 1n present value of non-participating

value of in-force business in the with profit fund

Transfers 1o the fund for future appropriations

Balance on the technical account - long term business

2010 2009
£m £m

4,062

(2,913)

1,149
2,255

2,434

5,838

553

6,391

3,501

(1,860)

1,641

18

(18)

1,644

2,487

(2,331)

156

3,935

3,187

780
115

71
193

®)
162

6,143
248

2009
£m

3,836

(2,543)

1,293
1,675

4,415

7,383

18
533

7,934

3,295

(1,737

1,558

1,558

4,111

823
684

75
213

201y
348

7,611

323




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Company Number 00166055

Non-technical account
Continuing operations

Profit from long term business

Balance on the long term business technical account

Tax credit attributable to balance on the
long term busimess technical account

Other operations
Investment income and realised gains

Unrealised gains on investments
Investment expenses and charges

Other income
Other charges
Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Tax on profit on ordinary aciivities
Profit for the financial year

Dividends
Retained profit

The notes on pages 14 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements

2010
£fm
Notes
248
5 84
3 161
3 50
3 2)
209
1
27)
5
16

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

Profit for the financ:al year

Profit on revaluation of investments 1n subsidiary undertakings

Total recognised gains for the financial year

10

2010 2009 2009
£fm £m £m
323
107
332 430
53
378
{472)
(41)
7
(3)
183 39
515 391
(85) (138)
430 253
(300) (154)
130 Q9
2010 2010
£m £m
430 253
214 531
644 784




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2010

Company Number 00166055

Assets

Investments Notes
Land and buildings 6
Investments 1n group undertakings and

participating interests 7
Other financial investments 8

Non-participating value of in-force business n the
with profit fund
Purchased interests n long term business 11

Assets held to cover linked habtlitres 8

Rewnsurers’ share of technical provisions
Long term business provision

Clamms outstanding

Technical provistons for hinked habilities

Debtors

Debtors ansing out of direct insurance operations
- policyholders

- intermediaries

Debtors ansing out of reimnsurance operations
Amounts owed by group undertakings

Other debtors 19
Other assets

Tangible assets 10
Cash at bank and in hand

Prepayments and accrued income

Accrued mnterest and rent

Deferred acquisition costs 12
Other prepayments and accruzed income

Total assets

1

2010
£fm

135

2,505

18,914

18,299
115

7,876

51

55
15
215
451

28
368

129
788
15

2010
fm

21,554

337

25,934

26,290

736

396

932
76,182

2009
£m

104

2,680

18,517

15,955
118

6,725

38

42
11
153
551

27
39

122
824
12

2009
£m

21,301

328

23,853

22,798

757

66

958

70,064




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2010

Company Number 00166055

Liabilitres

Capual and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Revaluation reserve
Profit and loss account

- Sharehoelder retained capital
- Other

Shareholders’ funds
Fund for future appropriations

Technical provisions

Short term business provision
Long term business provision
Claims outstanding

Techrical provisions for linked habilhities

Provisions for other risks and charges

Creditors

Creditors ansing out of direct insurance operations
Creditors ansing out of reinsurance operations
Amounts owed to credit institutions

Other Creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Total liabilites

The notes on pages 14 to 76 form an integral part of these financial statements

Notes
13
13
14

14
14

2(u)

15
17

17
21(c)

21(a)
21(b)

2010
£m

1,352

2,348

34,210
211

32
111

1,281

2010
fm

201
1,049
(486)

3,700

4,464

1,446

34,423

33,852
182

1,424

3n

76,182

2009
£m

1,290
2,280

31,691
210

32
97

1,247

2009
£m

201
1,049
(700)

3,570

4,120

1,284

31,903

30,772
162

1,377

446

70,064

The financial statements on pages 9 to 76 were approved and authonsed for 1ssue by the directors on 15 March 2011 and

were signed on their behalf by

Registered No 00166055
One Coleman Street
London EC2R 5AA

\Q:O,\\\Nm

N.D, WILSON, Director




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
fm £m

Notes
At 1 January 4,120 3,490
Total recognised gains and losses 644 784
Dividends 16 (300) {154)
At 31 December 4,464 4,120

13




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the provisions of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Group (Accounts and Reports}) Regulations 2008 relating to insurance compames except with regard to the non
depreciation of investment properties These financial statements conform to the Association of Bntish Insurers’
Siatement of Recommended Practice on Accounting for Insurance Business (SORP) 1ssued in December 2005 and
revised in December 2006 except with regards the accounting for hybnd contracts as set out in 1 (b) below

These financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
land and buildings and financial assets and financiat habihnes (including denvauve instruments) at fair value through
profit and loss

Compliance with Statement of Standard Accounting Pracuce ('SSAP) 19 "Accounting for investment properties’
requires departure from the requirement of the Compames Act 2006 relanng to depreciation and an explanation of the
departure 1s given 1 Accouniing pohicy 1(c) 'Investments’ below

In accordance with accounting standard FRS 1, 'Cash flow statements’ (Revised 1996}, Society has not prepared a cash
flow statement as the ultimate holding company, Legal & General Group Plc, has included a group cash flow
statement 1n 1ts financial statements

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements ncludes the use of estimates and assumptions which affect items reported
in the balance sheet and profit and loss account and the disclosure of contingent assets and hiabilities at the date of the
financial statements Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current circumstances
and future events and actions, actual results may differ from those estimates, possibly sigmficantly They are
parucularly relevant to the estimation of insurance and investment contract liabilities and associated balances, deferred
acquisition costs, tax habilities and the determination of fair values of unquoted financial investments and 1nvestment
properties The sigruficant estimates and assumptions used are disclosed 1n the relevant notes to these financial
statements, including Note 18 on Long-term Insurance valuation assumptions

(b) Long term business
Product classtfication

The Society’s products and reinsurance arrangements are classified for accounting purposes as either insurance
contracts (participating and non-participating) or mvestment contracts (participating and non-participating) Insurance
contracts are contracts which transfer significant insurance nsk to the insurer at the inception of the contract Contracts
which do not transfer sigmficant insurance nisk to the insurer are investment contracts Both insurance and investment
contracts may contain a discretionary participating feature which 1s defined as a contractual nght to receive additional
benefits as a supplement to guaranteed benefits These are referred to as participating contracts

Hybnid contract types, contaimng both insurance and investment features, have been treated as investment contracts
when accounting for premuums, clams and other revenue This accounting treatment does not comply with the
Association of Bntish Insurers' SORP, but 1t ensures that Society's participating investment contracts are treated
consistently with other investment contracts and with the Group's accounting policy 1n this area

Premium income

For insurance contracts, premuums (net of refunds and rebates) and consideration for annwuities are accounted for when
due for payment

For investment contracts, amounts collected as premiums are not included in the profit and loss account but are
reported as contnbutions to investment contract habilitzes 1n the balance sheet

14




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies

(b) Long term business
Revenue from investment contracts

Fees charged for imvestment management services are recogmised as revenue as the services are provided Imnal fees,
which exceed the level of recurring fees and relate to the future provision of services are deferred and amortised over
the anticipated period in which services will be provided

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs for insurance contracts comprise direct costs, such as initial commusston, and the indirect costs of
obtaining and processing new business

Acquisition costs, relaung to non-participating msurance contracts wntten outside of the with-profits part of the long
term fund (LTF), which are incurred during a financial year, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of
future revenue margins Deferral 1s effected by the use of an explicit asset which 1s amoruised over the period during
which the costs are expected to be recoverable, and 1n accordance with the incidence of future related margins For
business written within the with-profits part of the LTF, acquisition costs are charged to the profit and loss account
when incurred

For participating investment contracts, acquisition costs comprise direct costs such as mmitial commission and the
indirect costs of obtaining and processing new business The costs are charged to the profit and loss account when
incurred

For non-participating investment contracts, only directly related acquisition costs, which vary with, and are related to,
securmg new contracts and renewing existing contracts, are deferred and amortised over the period dunng which the
costs are expected to be recoverable from future revenue All other costs are recognised as expenses when incurred

Claims

Death claims are accounted for on notification of death Surrenders for non-linked policies are accounted for when
payment 15 made Critical illness claims are accounted for when admutted All other claims and surrenders are
accounted for when payment 15 due Claims payable include the direct costs of settlement

For investment contracts, claims are not included in the profit and loss account but are deducted from mvestment
contract habihties The movement 1n investment contract Labilhities consists of claims incurred in the penod less the
corresponding elimination of the policyholder hiability onginally recogmsed 1n the balance sheet and the investment
return credited to policyholders

Non-participating mvestment contracts

Non-participating investment contracts include unit linked contracts and are carred at amertised cost The amortised
cost of these financial habihiies 1s equivalent to the amount payable on demand without penalty calculated by
reference to the underlying net assets

Long term business provision

Insurance contract provision i1s determined following an annual mvestigation of the LTF in accordance with
regulatory requirements The provisions are calculated on the basis of current information and using the gross
premium valuation method For participating contracts the habilities to policyholders are determined on a realistic
basis 1n accordance with FRS 27 'Life Assurance’ This mcludes an assessment of the cost of any future options and
guarantees included in this business on a market consistent basis The calculation also takes account of benus
decistons which are consistent with Society's Principles and Practices of Financial Management The shareholders’
share of the future cost of bonuses 1s excluded from the assessment of the realistic Liability

15




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting pohcies (continued)

(b) Long term business (continued)

Long term insurance provisions, together with related remnsurance recovenes, are established on the basis of current
information Such provisions are subject to subsequent reassessment as changes to underlying factors such as
mortahity and morbidity occur These factors are discussed 1n more detail in Note 18

Technical provisions for linked habilinies

Liabihties under umt-linked contracts are recognised as and when the umits are created and are dependent on the
value of the underlying financial assets, derivatives and/or investment property Unit-linked contracts which transfer
stgnificant insurance nsk, including guaranteed benefits, are classified as imsurance contracts and are carried 1n the
balance sheet at an amount determuned by the valuation of the related units on the valuation date Unit-linked
contracts which principally involve the transfer of financial nsk are classified as investment contracts and are carned
in the balance sheet at amortised cost The amortised cost of these financial habilities 1s equivalent to the amount
payable on demand without penalty calculated by reference to the underlying net assets

Non-participating vaiue of in-force business in the with profit fund

In determuning the realistic value of labihues for parucipating contracts, the value of non-participating business
written 1n the with-profits fund 1s accounted for as part of the calculauon The present value of future profiis (PVFP)
on this business 1s separately determuined and its value 15 recogmised as an asset

Fund for finure appropriations (FFA)

The nature of benefits for participating contracts 15 such that the allocation of surpluses between equity holders and
parucipaung policyholders s uncertain The amount that has not been so allocated at the balance sheet date 1s
classified within habihities as the FFA Adjustments made to comply with FRS 27 are charged to the FFA

Rewnsurance commission from Legal & General Pensions Ltd (LGPL)

Under the reinsurance arrangement with LGPL, Society receives a reinsurance commussion The element of this
comrussion that 1s attnbutable to mis-selling nsks and investments contracts 15 recogmsed 1 the balance sheet as
part of accruals and deferred income and amortised over the penod during which the revenue 15 expected to be
recoverable

Tax

The investment return on shareholders' funds within the UK LTF s included in the balance of the Technical Account
- Long Term Business, gross of attnbutable tax, and 1s not subject to further grossing up The remainder of the
balance of the Techmcal Account - Long Term Business 1s subject to a notional gross up at the corporate tax rate
applicable for the penod

Remnsurance

Society cedes long term business premiums and nisk 1n the nermal course of business 1n order to himit the potental
for losses and provide financing Such contracts are accounted for as insurance contracts providing the nsk transfer 1s
sigruficant Outwards rernsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the related premuums
for the direct or inwards remnsurance business being remsured Reinsurance assets mclude balances due from
reinsurance compamnes for paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, and ceded future life policy benefits
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estmated in a manner consistent with the long term business hability
associated with the remsured policy Rensurance 1s recorded as an asset 1n total in the balance sheet unless a nght of
offset exists
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LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies (continued)

{b) Long term business (continued)

Trail comrmussions

Society operates distnbution agreements with mtermediaries where further commussion costs are payable in each
penod that a relevant policy remains in-force For relevant non-participating imvestment contracts, a liabiluty for the
present value of this future commussion cost 1s recogmsed 1n the balance sheet on inception of the contract The
present value of future comnussion costs are deferred as an asset and amortised over the period during which the
related revenue will be recognised At each subsequent reporting date, the hiability 1s measured at amortised cost
Any increase m the hiability 15 deferred as an additional asset If the future commussion hiability decreases, a
corresponding adjustment 1s made to the amortisation of the asset

Orther technical charges

Lapse, mortality and expense nisk on certain umit linked investment contracts 1s 1nsured with LGPL This
transaction 1s regarded as an insurance transaction rather than remsurance, and 15 therefore not included m
remnsurance premiums or claims The sum of the transactions in the year 15 shown as other techmical charges
Should the net sumn ever switch nto a net reclaim scenario the amount will be mcluded on other technical income

(¢) Investments
Land and buildings

Land and buildings which are held for long term rental yields and capital growth are carmed at fair value with
changes n fair value recognised in the profit and loss account within investment income Land and buildings in the
UK are valued bi-annually by external chartered surveyors at open market values in accordance with the *Appraisal
and Valuation Manual® of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Outside the UK, valuations are produced
m conjunction with external quahfied professional valuers in the countries concemed In the event of a materal
change 1n market conditions between the valuation date and balance sheet date, an mternal valuation is performed
and adjustments made to reflect any material changes in fair value

In accordance with SSAP 19, no depreciation or amortisation 1s provided in respect of freehold investment
properties and leasehold investment properties with over 20 years to run The requirement of the Companies Act
2006 1s to depreciate all properties This requirement conflicts with the generally accepted accounting principle set
out in SSAP 19 The directors consider that, as these properties are held for investment, to depreciate them would
not give a true and fair view, and that 1t 1t 1s necessary to adopt SSAP 19 1n order to give a true and fair view
Depreciation 1s only one of the factors reflected 1n the annual valuatiens, and the amounts which might otherwise
have been shown cannot reasonably be separately 1dentified or quantfied

Financial investments

Society classifies its financial investments on mitial recogntion as Held For Trading (HFT), designated at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)} or loans and receivables Imtial recogntion of financial investments 1s on
the trade date

Certain financial investments held by Society are designated as FVTPL as their performance 1s evaluated on a total
return basis, consistent with asset performance reporung to the Board of Directors and Society’s investment
strategy Assets designated as FVTPL include debt secunties and equity mstruments which would otherwise have
been classified as available for sale under FRS 26 Assets backing participating and non-participating policyholder
habilites are designated as FYTPL For participating contracts the assets are managed on a fair value basis to
maxtrmuse the total return to policyholders over the contract hfe Society's non-participating contract habihites are
measured on the basis of current information and are designated as FVTPL to avoid an accounung mismatch 1n the
profit and loss account
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LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies {continued)

(¢) Investments (continued}

Financial investments
All denvatives are classified as HFT

Society determines the fair values of certain financial assets and liabilittes based on quoted market prices, where available
Society also determunes fair value based on estimated cash flows discounted at the appropnate current market rate As
appropnate, fair values reflect adjustments for counterparty credit quality, Society's credit standing, hquidity and nisk
margins on observable inputs

Fair value measurements are based on observable and unobservable inputs Observable inputs reflect market data
obtamed from mmdependent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect Society's view of market assumptions 1n the absence
of observable market information Society utilises valuation techniques that maximuse the use of observable iputs The
levels of fair value measurement bases and principal asset classifications are defined as follows

Tier Principally includes: Fair values measured using
Level 1 [listed equity instruments, government and certain quoted prices (unadjusted) i active markets for
su}’;ranatmnal mnstitution bonds and exchange traded  |identical assets and habilines
futures and options
Level 2 |histed corporate bonds, commercial paper, denivative  [valuation techmques for all inputs sigmficant to the
mstruments which are not exchange traded and asset  |measurement other than quoted prices included within
backed secuntes Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (1e as prnices) or indirectly (1e denved
from prnices)
Level 3 |unquoted equities, including mvestments 1n non traded |valuation techniques for any input for the asset or
property mnvestment vehicles, venture capital, and liability significant to the measurement that 1s not
suspended secunties based on observable market data (unobservable 1nputs)

Financial investments classified as HFT and FVTPL are measured at fair value with gains and losses reflected in the profit
and loss account

Loans and receivables are imtially measured at fair vatue less acquisihon costs, and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method

(d) Impairment policy

Society reviews the carrying value of 1ts assets (other than those held at FVTPL and HFT) at each balance sheet date If
the carrying value of a financial asset 1s impaired, the carrying value 1s reduced through a charge to the profit and loss
account There must be objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which have occurred after the
mmtial recognition of the asset Impairment 1s only recogmsed 1f the loss event has an 1mpact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated

Non-financial assets which have an indefimite useful hife are not subjected to amortisation and are tested annually for
impaument Assets which are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes 1n
circumstances ndicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable The recoverable amount 1s the gher of an
asset's fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use
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LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies (continued)

(e¢) Derivative financial instruments

Denvatives are imnally recogmised at fair value on the date on which a deravative contract 1s entered nto and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value Changes i the fair value are recogmised immediately 1n the profit and
loss account Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices m active markets, including recent market
transactions, and valuation techmques, including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models, as
appropniate All derivauves are carried as assets when the fair value 15 positive and as habilities when the fair value 1s
negative

The best evidence of the fair value of a denivative at imitial recognition 1s the transaction price (1 e the fair value of
the consideration given or receirved) unless the fair vatue of that instrument 1s evidenced by comparison with other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument {1 e without modification or repackaging) or based on
a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets

(f) Embedded derivatives

Where the risks and characteristics of derivatives embedded 1n other contracts are not closely related to those of the
host contract and the whole contract 1s not carned at fair value, the derivative 1s separated from that host centract and
measured at fair value, with fair value movements reflected within investment income 1n the profit and loss account

(g) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised mitially at fair value, net of transaction costs Borrowings classified as habilities are
subsequently stated at amortised cost The difference between the proceeds and the redemption value 15 recogmised in
the income statement over the borrowing period using the effective interest method

(h) Investment return

The reporting of investment return compnses investment imcome, realised gains and losses from all financial assets
and unrealised gams and losses from financial investments held at FVTPL Investment mmcome includes dividends,
mterest and rent Dividends are accrued on an ex-dividend basis Interest and rent are :ncluded on an accruals basis
Interest income for financial assets that are not classified as FVTPL 1s recognised using the effective interest method

(i) Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Shares 1n subsidiary undertakings are stated at current value In accordance with the SORP, gamns and losses on
interests m subsidiary undertakings attnibutable to long term business are taken to the techmeal account for long term
business and gains and losses on all other mterests are taken to the revaluation reserve

Investments 1n subsidianes also include loans to subsidiary undertakings that are long term in nature and the
repayment of which 1s contingent on the emergence of surplus within the subsichary The investments are valued at
cost, including accrued interest, less provision for impairment where 1t 1s considered that the full balance is not
recoverable

(j) Purchased interests in long term business

Blocks of in-force business purchased through the acqusition of a subsidiary undertaking are capitalised at fair value
The value of business acquired represents the present value of anticipated future profits 1n acquired contracts These
amounts are amorused over the anticipated lives of the related contracts in the portfolio

(k) General insurance

General insurance provisions, together with related reinsurance recovenes, are established on the basis of current
information Such provisions can never be defimtive as to their tmung or the amount of claims and are therefore
subject to subsequent reassessment on a regular basis
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LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting policies (continued)
{k) General insurance (continued)
Claims

Claims and related reinsurance amounts are accounted for 1n respect of all incidents up to the year end Provision
15 made on the basis of available information for the estimated uitimate cost, mncluding claims settlement

(1) claums reported but not settled,
(1) claims mcurred but not yet reported

(I) Capital expenditure

Expenditure on computers, motor cars and large items of equipment 1s depreciated over periods ranging up to
four vears, having regard to expected residual values All other items of capital expenditure are charged to the
profit and loss account as incurred

(m) Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency (GBP) using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gams and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabihities denominated 1n
foreign currencies are recognised 1n the profit and loss account for the period

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss

(n) Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 recognised 1n respect of timing differences which have not reversed at the balance sheet date and
which result 1n an obligation to pay more tax, or a nght to pay less tax, at a future date Deferred tax 1s measured
at rates expected to apply when the timing differences reverse, based on current tax rates and law Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 15 more likely than not that they will be recovered Deferred tax assets
and Liabilities are not discounted

(0) Related party transactions

Society has taken advantage of the exemption n FRS 8, 'Related party disclosures' from disclosing related party
transactions with other entities which are greater than 90% owned and are included n the consolidated financial
statements of Legal & General Group Plc

{p) Dividend recognition

Dividend distnbution to Society’s shareholders 1s recognised as a hability in the penod in which the dividend 1s
authorised and 1s no longer at the discretion of Society Final dividends are accrued when approved by Society’s
Directors and mntenm dividends are acerued when paid

{q) Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred over the lease term

(r) Provisions for other risks and charges

Society provides for a trail commussion liability as the sum of the present value of future trail commission on the
existing book of business, with the umt hiabihties projected forward and the commussion bemng discounted back at
the nisk free rate of return
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LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Analysis of revenue

(1) Long term business

Gross premiums written

2010 2009
Non- Investment Non- Investment
parhapating Participating hnked Total participating  Participating linked Total
£m £ £m £m £m £m £m £m
Individual
Periodic 916 141 30 1,087 873 165 33 1,071
Single 1,168 428 - 1,596 998 566 - 1,564
2,084 569 30 2,683 1,871 731 33 2,635
Group
Periodic 434 7 - 441 302 8 - 310
Single 936 2 - 938 891 - - 891
1,370 9 - 1,379 1,193 8 - 1,201
3,454 578 30 4,062 3,064 739 33 3,836

Gross premiums wrtten by destination are not materially different from gross premums written by ongin
The above figures include inward reinsurance premium of US$ 161m from Legal & General Amenca (LGA)
This amount 15 reinsured to Legal & General Pensions Limuted (LGPL) under the existing reinsurance arrangement

New business (gross of reinsurance)

New business 15 presented for all long term business wntten by Society, including both insurance and investment
contracts Investment contracts are accounted for on a deposit accounting basis and are not included 1n gross premiums
written 1n the above table

2010 2009
Non- Investment Non- Investment
participating Participating linked Total participating  Participating linked  Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Individual
Penodic 118 2 368 488 122 2 245 369
Single 1,142 343 2,058 3,543 962 624 1,566 3,152
1,260 345 2426 4,031 1,084 626 1,811 3,521
Group
Penodic 57 1 - 58 57 1 - 58
Single 897 2 - 899 833 - - 833
954 3 - 957 940 1 - 941
2,214 348 2,426 4,988 2,024 627 1,811 4,462

There are three classes of business for conventional individual protection where there 15 a matenial difference between
gross and net of reinsurance new business, term assurance which 1s 36 6% remsured (2009 53 7%), whole of hfe
assurance which 15 18 1% reinsured (2009 12 4%) and income protection which 1s 63 1% reinsured (2009 39 1%)

Non-profit pension new business 15 100% remnsured (2009 100%) and group protection new business 1s 43 7% reinsured

(2009 63 9%)

New periedic premuums anse where the terms and conditions anticipate more than one premuum bemng paid over the
period of the policy, new single premuums compnse all premuums which do not fall te be categonsed as periadic
premums
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LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Analysis of revenue (continued)

(1) Long term business (continued)

Reinsurance balance

The reinsurance balance for long term business amounted to a profit of £1,937m (2009 profit of
£2,427m) This represents the total of all rtems included 1n the technical account for long term business

which relate 10 remsurance outwards transactions

(1) Shareholders' funds - equity interests

Long term business*
Other

2010 2009

£m £m
1,352 1,290
3,112 2,830
4,464 4,120

* These assets represent the shareholder retamned capital (SRC) held within the LTF

22




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Investment return

Technical Technical
account - Non-  account - Non-
long term  technical  long term technical
business account business account
2010 2010 2009 2009
£m £m £m £m
Investment income and realised gains
Investment income
Income 1n respect of land and buildings! 204 - 206 -
Income in respect of other investments
Received from group undertakings - 130 2 34
Loans and receivables interest income 16 - 45 -
Income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 1,412 20 1,422 19
1,428 150 1,469 53
Net gains on realisation of investments 623 11 - -
2,255 161 1,675 53
Investment expenses and charges
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts a7 - (14) -
Net losses on realisation of investments - - (586) @71
Investment management expenses (98) (2} (84) 4}
(115) (2) (684) (472)
Net unrealised gains on investments 2,434 50 4,415 378
Total investment return > 4,574 209 5,406 41)

1 The income from investment properties held represents the rentals receivable for the year

2 Unrealised gains represent the fair value movements for the year on financial assets designated at far
value through profit and loss

3 Financial investment return includes fair value gains and losses, dividends and interest Net gains/(losses)
(excluding interest and dividend mmcome of £3,118m (2009 £3,736m) arose on financial mvestments
designated as FVTPL and £55m (2009 £(81m)) arose on derivative contracts classified as HFT Investment
income of £16m arose on loans and receivables (2009 £45m) No assets are designated as AFS
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LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Net operating expenses

Technical account - long term business

Acquisition costs
Change 1n deferred acquisition costs

Admunistrative expenses - maintenance
- other
Total administration expenses

2010
£m

211

50

2010
fm

483

36

261

780

2009

209
72

2009

515

27

281

823

Included 1n the figures above 1s £271m of commussions for direct insurance business (2009 £290m)

5. Tax charge

UK corporation tax at 28% (2009: 28%)
Current tax for the year
Adjustments 1n respect of prior periods

Deferred tax
Ongation and reversal of tming differences

Foreign tax

Current tax for the year

Tax attributable to the balance on the
technical account - long term business

24

Techmeal Technical

account - Non-  account - Non-
long term  techmical longterm  techmical
business account business account
2010 2010 2009 2009
im £m £m £m

83 12 29 5

(39) (25) 5 5

44 a3 24 10

134 14 173 21

178 1 197 31

15 - 16 -

193 1 213 31

34 107

85 138




LEGAL & GENERAL ASSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Tax charge (continued)

Factors affecting current tax charge for the period

The tax assessed for the penod 1s lower (2009 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax n the UK for a

company 28% {2009 28%) The differences are explained below

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Corporation tax at 28% (2009 28%)
Effects of-

Disallowable expenditure

Difference between taxable and accounting investment gains/losses
Non taxable dividends

Adjustments 1n respect of prior periods

(Lower) tax on SRC investment return

Current tax charge for the year

Factors which may affect future tax charge

2010 2009
£m £m
515 391
144 109
7 3]
23 27
29 {6)
(25) 5
3 (16)
71 117

No provisien 1s made for deferred tax on gains recogmsed on the revaluation of subsidiaries to net asset value Such
tax would become payable only if the subsidiaries were sold without 1t bemng possible to claim substantial
shareholding relief and in the case of subsidianes of the long term fund, 1f the revaluation gains (realised or
unreahised} were released as surplus in the FSA return At present, it 1s not envisaged that any tax will become

payable in the foreseeable future

Society has unrelieved capital losses of £188m as at 31 December 2010 (2009 £736m), which compnises losses of
£122m (2009 £180m) n the shareholder fund, and £66m (2009 £556m) 1n the long term fund A partial deferred
tax asset has been recognised 1n respect of these losses, to the extent 1t 15 constdered more likely than not that there
will be suitable profits emerging 1n future penods against which to relieve them The potential deferred tax asset
unrecognised as at 31 December 2010 15 £15m (2009 £15m), of which £mil relates to the shareholder fund and

£15m relates to the long term fund
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Land and buildings

Shareholder Non profit non-  With-profits Total Unit hnked
assets umt hinked
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m £m £m
Long leaseholds 1 - 10 11 238
Freehold properties 10 - 114 124 1,137
Total land and buildings 11 - 124 135 1,375
Original cost 7 - 77 84 1,691
Shareholder Non profit non- With-profits Total Unit linked
assets unit linked
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Long leaseholds 1 - 11 12 227
Freehold properties 7 - 85 92 1,057
Total land and buildings 8 - 96 104 1,284
Orniginal cost 5 - 58 63 1,688
Assets have been split across categories 1n line with exposure to nsk Details can be found 1n Note 34
. Investments in group undertakings and participating interests
Investments
ingroup  Loans te group
companies undertakings Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2010 1,700 980 2,680
Profit on revaluation of investment n subsidiary undertakings 214 - 214
Repayment of loans to subsidianes - (389) (389)
At 31 December 2010 1,914 391 2,505
Cost at 31 December 2010 2,527 591 3,118
Cost at 31 December 2009 2,526 980 3,506

Loans to group undertakings comprnise a £591m (2009 £980m) contngent loan to LGPL The repayment of the loan 1s
contingent on the emergence of surplus withun LGPL The loan 1s considered to be long term 1n nature Internal modelling
indicates that the full balance will be repatd in the medium term and therefore no provision for impairment has been

made
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. Investments in group undertakings and participating interests (continued)
Subsidiary undertakings
The sigmificant subsidiary undertakings of Legal & General Assurance Society are histed below Each undertaking

operates mainly 1n ats country of incorporation and has only one class of 1ssued ordinary shares

Incorporated in
Held directly by the company

Legal & General Insurance Limited England and Wales
Legal & General Pensions Limited England and Wales
Nationwide Life Limited England and Wales
Held indirectly through subsidiary undertakings

Legal & General Nederland Levensverzekering Maatschappy NV Netherlands

Legal & General (France) S A France

Legal & General Bank (France) S A France

All subsidiaries are 100% owned and have 31 December financial year end

A full list of subsidiary undertakings 1s on pages 75 and 76

8 Financial investments

Non Profit
Shareholder non-unit
assets hnked With-profits Total Unit hnked
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
£fm £m £m £m £m
Fair value through profit or loss 1,555 2 16,491 18,048 23,333
Held for trading 7 - 84 9N 5
Financial investments at fair value (1) 1,562 2 16,575 18,139 23,338
Loans and receivables (1) 105 3 788 896 901
Total financial investments 1,667 5 17,363 19,035 24,239
Cash at bank and 1n hand 199
Land and buildings 1,375
Total linked investments 25,813

Financial investments include £36m (2009 £17m) of debt secunties pledged as collateral against denvauves habihties The
assets used as collateral are Treasury Gilts (2009 Treasury Gilts) having a residual matunty of over 33 years (2009 over
12 years) Society 15 entitled to recerve all of the cash flows from an asset during the period when 1t 1s pledged as collateral
Further, there 15 no obligation to pay or transfer these cash flows to another entity Society can decide to substitute an asset
which 1s designated as collateral at any time, provided the relevant terms and conditions of the International Swap Dealers
Association agreement are met

Assets held to cover linked liabilities on the balance sheet of £25,934m (2009 £23,853m) are made up of £25,813m of
Unit linked assets (2009 £23,743m) and £121m of Index linked assets (2009 £110m) These assets are measured at
FVTPL £70m (2009 £64m) of Index Iinked assets are classified as Non Profit non-umt linked and £51m (2009 £46m) as
With-profits in hine with the approach to nsk management detailed in Note 34
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8. Financial investments (continued)

Non Profit
Shareholder non-unit
assets linked  With-profits Total Unit linked
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Faur value through profit or loss 1,083 162 15,968 17,213 20,509
Held for trading - 2 63 65 10
Financial investments at fair value (1) 1,083 164 16,031 17,278 20,519
Loans and recetvables (u11) 117 11 1,221 1,349 1,788
Total financial investments 1,200 175 17,252 18,627 22,307
Cash at bank and 1n hand 152
Land and buildings 1,284
Total linked investments 23,743

(1) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the Cornpany's financial investments by FRS29 hierarchy level as at 31 December 2010

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2010 2010 2010 20190
£m £m £m ifm

Shareholder assets
Equty secunties - FVTPL 1,072 852 115 105
Debt secunities - FVTPL 476 236 240 -
Accrued interest - FYTPL 7 3 4 -
Denivative assets - HFT (Note 9) 7 4 3 .
Non profit non-unit linked
Equity secunties - FVTPL 1 1 - -
Debt securnities - FVTPL 1 - 1 -
Accrued interest - FVTPL - - - -
Denvative assets - HFT (Note 9) - - - -
Unit linked
Equity secunties - FVTPL 18,653 18,173 218 262
Debt securnities - FVTPL 4,620 2,164 2,456 -
Accrued nterest - FVTPL 59 17 42 .
Denvauve assets - HFT (Note 9) 5 5 - -
With profits
Equity secunties - FYTPL 6,575 4,470 17 2,088
Debt securities - FVTPL 9,735 2,670 7,065 -
Accrued interest - FVTPL 177 34 143 -
Denvative assets - HFT (Note 9) 84 6 78 -
Total financial investments 41,472 28,635 10,382 2,455
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. Financial investments (continued)

(i} Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2009 2009 2009 2009
Shareholder assets £m £m £m £m
Equity securities - FVTPL 995 807 100 88
Debt securities - FVTPL 87 70 17 -
Accrued interest - FVTPL 1 1 - -
Non profit non-unit hinked
Equity secunities - FVTPL 1 1 - -
Debt securities - FVTPL 160 152 8 -
Accrued mterest - FVTPL 1 1 - -
Derivative assets - HFT (Note 9) 2 - 2 -
Unit linked
Equity securities - FVTPL 16,664 16,390 45 229
Debt securities - FVTPL 3,783 1,756 2,027 -
Accrued interest - FVTPL 62 16 46 -
Dernvative assets - HFT (Note 9) 10 10 - -
With profits
Equty securities - FVTPL 5,921 4,127 2 1,792
Debt secunties - FVYTPL 9,839 2,704 7,135 -
Accrued mterest - FVTPL 204 37 167 -
Dernvative assets - HFT (Note 9) 62 5 57 -
Total financial investments 37,792 26,077 9,606 2,109
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m £m
Non profit non-unit linked
Dernvative habilities (Note 9) - - - -
Unit linked
Dernvative habiliies (Note 9) 10 10 - -
With profits
Dernivative hamhnes (Note 9) 93 12 81 -
Total derivative liabilitities 103 22 81 -
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. Financial investments (continued)

(1) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Total Levell Level 2 Level 3
2009 2009 2009 2009
£m £m £m £m
Uniat linked
Denvative lhabilines (Note 9) 2 2 - -
With profits
Derivatve hahilities (Note 9) 55 7 48 -
Total derivative liabrlitities 57 9 48 -

In current market condttions, the liquidity of certamn financial instruments 1s less than it has been m the past
All of Society's level 2 assets have been valued using standard market pricing sources, such as 1Boxx, IDC and
Bloomberg In normal market conditions, we would consider these market prices to be observable market
prices However, following consultation with our pnicing providers and a number of their contributing brokers,
we have concluded that these prices are not from an active market and have been classified as level 2

Our holdings i swaps are priced using indusiry standard internal models which utilise market assumptions
Accordingly these asseis have also been classified 1n level 2 Level 3 assets, where internal models are used to
estimate fair vale represent a small proportion of assets to which shareholders are exposed, consist of
unquoted equities mcluding investments 1 venture capital and property investment vehicles In many
situations, puts used to measure the fair value of an asset or habihity may fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy In these situations, Society will determune the level mn which the fair value falls based upon
the lowest level input that 1s significant to the determunation of the fair value As a result, both observable and
unobservable inputs may be used in the determunation of fair vatues that Society has classified as level 3

(a) Assets measured at fair value based on level 3

Equity securities 2010 2009
£m £m
As at 1 January 2,109 1,448
Total gans or losses for the penod
- profit and loss 298 37
Purchases 193 927
Sales {145) (229)
As at 31 December 2,455 2,109
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. Financial investments (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(b) Effect on changes n significant unobservable inputs (level 3) to reasonably possible alternative assumptions

As discussed above, the farr value of financial instruments are, 1n certaun circumstances measured using valuation
techmques that incorporate assumptions that are not evidenced by prices from observable current market transactions n
the same mstrument and are not based on uncbservable market data The following table shows the level 3 financial
mstruments carried at faur value as at the balance sheet date, the valuation basis, main assumptions used 1n the valuation
of these mstruments and reasonably possible increases or decreases in fair value based on reasonably possible

alternative assumptions

Financial instruments
Assets
Sharecholder

- Private equity investment vehicles'
- Property mvestment vehicles®
With profits

- Private equity investment vehicles'

- Property investment vehicles®
Umt hinked

- Property investment vehicles®
Total

Financial instruments
Assets
Shareholder

- Private equity investment vehicles'
- Property investment vehicles®
With profits

- Private equity investment vehicles'
- Property investment vehicles®
Unit linked

- Property mvestment vehicles’
Total

Main
assumptions

Price earmings multiple
Property yield, occupancy

Price earnings multiple
Property yield, occupancy

Property yield, occupancy

Main
assumptions

Price earmings multiple
Property yield, occupancy

Price earmings multiple
Property yield, occupancy

Property yield, occupancy

Reasonably possible

Current Increase Decrease
fair value m fair Value n fair Value
2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m
13 1 1)
92 1 (1)
126 9 (%
1,962 93 93)
262 12 (12)
2,455 116 (116)
Reasonably possible
Current Increase Decrease
fair value in fair Value  1n fair Value
2009 2009 2009
£m £m £m
9 _ -
79 5 (&3]
98 7 ()]
1,694 99 99)
229 17 (a7
2,109 128 (128)

1 Pnvate equity investments are valued in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capatal

Valuatton Gudehnes

2 Unquoted mvestments 1 property vehicles are valued by independent valuers on the basis of open market value as
defined m the appraisal and valuation manual of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors Reasonably possible
alternative valuations have been determined using alternative yield and occupancy assumptions
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. Financial investments (continued)

(ii) Financial instruments by category

In accordance with FRS 29, the following table shows financial instruments analysed by category

Assets at
fair value Financial
through habilities at
profit and Loans and amortised
loss receivables cost Total
2010 2010 2010 2010
£fm £m £m £m
Assets and liabilities per balance sheet
Financial mvestments 18,029 896 - 18,925
Assets held to cover linked liabilities 24,823 1,100 - 25,923
Loans to group undertakings - 591 - 591
Due from group undertakings - 215 - 215
Other debtors - 451 - 451
Cash at bank and 1 hand - 368 - 368
Other creditors - - (1,281) (1,281)
Technical provisions for linked habilities - - (33,852) (33,852)
Total 42,852 3,621 (35,133) 11,340
Assets at
fair value Financial
through Liabilities at
profit and Loans and amortised
loss receivables cost Total
2009 2009 2009 2009
£m £m £m £m
Assets and liabilities per balance sheet
Financial investments 17,168 1,349 - 18,517
Assets held to cover linked habihities 21,913 1,940 - 23,853
Loans to group undertakings - 980 - 980
Due from group undertakings - 153 - 153
Other debtors - 551 - 551
Cash at bank - 39 - 39
Other creditors - - (1,247 (1,247}
Amounts owed to credit institutions - - )] (n
Technical provisions for linked habilihes - - (30,772) (30,712)
Total 39,081 5,012 (32,020 12,073
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8. Financial investments {continued)

Non Profit
Shareholder non-unit
(ii1) Loans and receivables assets linked With-profits Total Unit linked
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m £m £fm
Loans and receivables
Deposits with credit mstitutions 105 3 187 895 901
Policy loans - - 1 1 -
Total loans and receivables 105 3 788 896 901
The fair value of the loans and recervables 1s not materially different from the carrying value
Non Profit
Shareholder non-unit
assets linked  With-profits Total Unit hinked
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
£m £m £m £fm £m
Loans and receivables
Deposits with credit mstitutions 117 11 1,220 1,348 1,788
Policy loans - - 1 i -
Total loans and receivables 117 11 1,221 1,349 1,788
(iv) Original cost of investments
2010 2009
£m £m
Equity secunities 6,198 6,168
Debt securities 10,452 10,064
Denvative assets 8 6
Policy loans 1 |
Deposits with credit institutions 259 1,344
Assets held to cover unit linked habilities 20,454 20,280
Assets held to cover index linked Liabilities 154 182
37,526 38,045

{v) Listed investments

Included 1n the carrying values of other financial 1nvestments in note 8(1) above are amounts 1n respect of hsted

mvestments as follows

Shares and units 1n unit trusts
Debt secunties
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2010 2009
£m £m
6,549 5,881
10,213 10,086
16,762 15,967
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Financial investments (continued}

Table (v1) provides mformation regarding the carrying value of financial assets that have been impaired and the ageing
analysis of financial assets that are past due but not impared

{vi) Ageing of non-unit linked financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Neither Financial
past assets that
due nor 0-3 3-6 6 months Over have been Carrying
impaired months months -1year 1year impaired value
Shareholder assets £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2010
Govemnment securities 222 - - - - - 222
Other fixed rate securities 243 - - - - - 243
Variable rate securiues 11 - - - - - 11
Total debt securities 476 - - - - - 476
Accrued interest 7 - - - - - 7
Loans and receivables 11 - - - - - 11
Derivative assets 7 - - - - - 7
Cash equivalents 94 - - - - - 94
Financial assets 595 - - - - - 595
Reinsurers' share of contract liabilities - - - - - - .
Amounts owed by group undertakings 76 - - - - - 76
Other assets 23 - - - - - 23
694 - - - - - 694
Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
Neither Financial
pasi assets that
due nor 0-3 3.6 6months Over have been Carrying
impaired months months -1year 1 year impaired value
Non profit non-unit linked £m £m £m £m £m £fm £m
As at 31 December 2010
Other fixed rate secunties 1 - - - . - 1
Vanable rate securities 1 - - - - - 1
Total debt securities 2 - - - - - 2
Cash equivalents 3 - - - - - 3
Financial assets 5 - - - - - 5
Remnsurers' share of contract habilities 1,791 - - - - - 1,791
Amounts owed by group undertakings 139 - - - - - 139
Other assets 110 - - - - - 110
2,045 - - - - - 2,045
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8. Financial investments (continued)
(vi) Ageing of non-unit linked financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Neither Fimancial
past assets that
due nor 0-3 3-6 6 months Over havebeen Carrymg
With-profits impaired months  months -1 year 1 year impaired value
As at 31 December 2010
Government securities 1,672 - - - - - 1,672
Other fixed rate securities 7,974 - - - - - 7,974
Variable rate securities 94 - - - - - 94
Total debt securities 9,740 - - - - - 9,740
Accrued interest 177 - - - - - 177
Loans and receivables 88 - - - - - 88
Derivative assets 84 - - - - - 84
Cash equivalents 700 - - - - - 700
Fiancial assets 10,789 - . - - - 10,789
Other assets 122 - - - - - 122
10,911 - - - - - 10,911
Fimancial assets that are past due but not impaired
Neither Financial
past assets that
due nor 0-3 3-6 6 months Over havebeen Carrying
impared months months -1 year 1 year impaired value
Shareholder assets £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2009
Government securities 69 - - - - - 69
Vanable rate securities 18 - - - - - 18
Total debt securities 87 - - - - - 87
Accrued interest 1 - - - - - 1
Loans and receivables 33 - - - - - 33
Cash equivalents 85 - - - - - 85
Financial assets 206 - - - - - 206
Remsurers' share of contract habilities 2 - - N - - 2
Amounts owed by group undertakings 112 - - - - - 112
Other assets 21 - - - - - 21
341 - - - - - 341
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8 Financial investments (continued)
(vi) Ageing of non-unit hnked financial assets that are past due but not impaired (continued)

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

Neather Financial

past assets that
due nor 0-3 3-6 6 months Over have been Carrying
Non Profit non-unit linked impatred months  months - 1 year 1 year 1mpawred value
As at 31 December 2009 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Government securiies 140 - - - - - 140
Other fixed rate secunues 20 - - - - - 20
Total debt securities 160 - - - - - 160
Accrued interest 1 - - - - - 1
Loans and receivables 1 - - - - - 1
Denvative assets 2 - - - - - 2
Cash equivalents 10 - - - - - 10
Financial assets 174 - - - - - 174
Remsurers' share of contract habilities 1,623 - - - - - 1,623
Amounts owed by group undertakings 41 - - - - - 41
Other assets 12 96 2 1 2 - 113
1,850 96 2 1 2 - 1,951

Financial assets that are past due but not impawred

Neither Financial

past assets that
due nor 0-3 3-6 6 months Over have been Carrying
With-profits mmpaired months  months -1 year 1 year impaired value
As at 31 December 2009 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Government securities 1,665 - - - - - 1,665
Other fixed rate secunties 8.014 - - - - - 2,014
Vanable rate securities 165 - - - - - 165
Total debt secunties 9,844 - - - - - 9844
Accrued interest 204 - - - - - 204
Loans and receivables 296 - - - - - 296
Denvative assets 63 - - - - - 63
Cash equivalents 925 - - - - - 925
Financial assets 11,332 - - - - - 11,332
Remnsurers’ share of contract habilities 3 - - - - - 3
Other assets 54 25 - - 2 - 81
11,389 25 - - 2 - 11,416
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9, Derivative assets and liabilities

Contract/ Contract/
notional Fair values notional Fair values
amount Assets' Liabilities® amount  Assets' Liabihties®
2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009
£m fm £m £m £m £m
Shareholder assets derivatives:
Interest-rate contracts - held for trading 212 3 (N - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts - held for trading 5 a) - -
Equty/iindex derivatives - held for trading (43) - (1) 2 - -
Total shareholder assets derivatives 8 9 - -
Non profit non-unit linked derivatives:
Equity/index derivatives - held for trading 112 - - 112 2 -
Total non-umt linked derivatives - - 2 0
With-profits derivatives:
Interest-rate contracts - held for trading 1,469 51 (57 917 35 42
Forward foreign exchange contracts - held for trading 4 (10) - 3 6
Equity/index derivatives - held for trading 472 28 (16) 398 23 7
Other derivatives - held for trading 1 1 - 2 2 -
Total with-profits derivatives 84 (83) 63 35
Unit hinked derivatives:
Forward foreign exchange contracts - held for trading 4 (N - 8 1
Equity/Aindex denivatives - held for trading (267) - %)} 36 2 1
Other derivatives - held for trading 8 1 - 5 1 -
Total unit linked denvatives 5 (10) i1l 2
Total dernvative assets and habilities 97 (102) 76 57

1 Denvative assets are reported 1n the balance sheet within financtal investments (Note 8)
2 Dernivative liabilities are reported 1n the balance sheet within other creditors
The notional amounts of some derivatve instruments provide a basis for companson with instruments recogmsed on the

balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the
instruments and, therefore, do not indicate Society's exposure to credit or price risks
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9. Derivative assets and liabilities (continued)

The gross contractual undiscounted cash flows 1n relation to non-umt linked denvatives have the following matunty

Unit linked denivatives have not been included as shareholders are not directly exposed to liqurdity risks

As at 31 December 2010

Cash inflows

Shareholder assets derivatives
Denvative assets

Denvative hiabilities
With-profits derivatives
Denvative assets

Derivative liabilihes

Total undiscounted cash inflows

Cash outflows

Shareholder assets derivatives
Denvative assets

Denvauve habilities

With-profits derivatives
Derivative assets

Denvauve liabihities

Total undiscounted cash outflows

Total

Net shareholder assets derivatives cash flows

Net with-profits derivatives cash flows

Fair
values

fm

9

(83)

9

(83)

38

Maturity profile of undiscounted cash flows

Within 1.5 5.15 15-25 Over 25

1year Years years years years Total
£fm £m £m £m £m £m
280 4 22 16 4 326
99 14 11 - - 124

225 132 102 30 4 493
796 67 131 52 8 1,054
1,400 217 266 98 16 1,997
277) ) (16) (12) C)] (315)
(105) (19 10) - - (134)
(201) (75) 99) 27 ) {406)
{845) 92) (49 (58) €)) (1,148)
(1,428) (192) (269) (97) (17) (2,003)
(28) 25 (3) 1 (1) {6)
(%)) D 7 4 - 1
(25) 32 (10) ()] (1) (7
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9, Derivative assets and liabilities {continued)

Maturity profile of undiscounted cash flows

Over
Farr Within 1 1-5 5-15 15-25 25

values year years years years years Total
As at 31 December 2009 £m £m £m £m fm £m fm
Cash inflows
Non profit non-unit linked derivatives
Denvative assets 2 - 2 - - - 2
With-profits derivatives
Derivative assets 63 289 93 84 28 4 498
Denvative habihities (55%) 255 83 108 49 11 506
Total undiscounted cash inflows 544 178 192 77 15 1,006
Cash outflows
Non profit non-unit lmked derivatives
Denvative assets 2 - - - - - -
With-profits derivatives
Derivative assets 63 (267) (52) (85) 24y 3y 43D
Derivative habilities (55) 271 (122) (111) G4y 13y 7D
Total undiscounted cash outflows (538) (174) (196) (78) (16) (1,002)
Total 6 4 4) (1 (D 4
Net non profit non-unit linked derivatives cash flows - 2 - - - 2
Net with-profits derivatives cash flows 6 2 (4) (I Q) 2
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10. Tangible assets

Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment (principally computer equipment) 2010 2009
£m fm

Cost

At 1 January 83 85

Adduons 13 7

Disposals )] 9)

At 31 December 87 83

Depreciation

At 1 January 56 51
Provided during the year 10 12
Disposals D (7)
At 31 December 59 56
Net book value at 31 December 28 27

11. Purchased interests in long term business

2010 2009
£fm £m

Cost
At 1 January 21 21
At 31 December 21 21
Amortisation
At 1 January 18 17
Provided during the year - |
At 31 December 18 18
Net book value at 31 December 3 3

The net book value of purchased interests in long term business represents the remaining unamortised portion of
the actuanally determuined fair values of purchased long term in-force business The value of the in-force business
purchased on the acquisition of the Allhance & ILeicester Life Assurance Company Ltd 1s amortised over its
economuc hife
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12. Deferred acquisition costs

2010 2009
£m £m
Insurance contract deferred acquisition costs 1 5
Investment contract deferred acquisition costs 787 819
Total deferred acquisition costs 788 824
13 Share capital
Number of shares 2010 2009
000's £m £m
Issued share capital
Fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each
At 31 December fully paid ordinary shares of £1 201,430 201 201
Share premuum
At 31 December 1,049 1,049
14. Movement In reserves
Profit Profit
and loss  Revaluation and loss Revaluation
account reserve account reserve
2010 2010 2009 2009
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 3,570 (700) 3,471 (1,231)
Retained profit 130 - 99 -
Profit on revaluation of investments mn subsidianes - 214 - 531
Balance At 31 December 3,700 (486) 3,570 (700)

Included 1n the profit and loss reserves 1s a non-distributable amount of £350m (2009 £400m) 1n respect of the
Board's commtment to support the with-profits business

15. General insurance business provisions

2010 2009

£m £m
General reinsurance unearmned premium 2 2
Gross claims outstanding 2 2

A technical account - general msurance business has not been presented on the grounds of matenalty
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16. Dividends

Dividend paid n the year
Current year dividend of 148 9p per share (2009 76 5p)

17. Technical provisions

Long Term

Non linked participating msurance contracts
Non linked non-participating insurance contracts
Non linked participating investment coniracts
Long term business provision - gross

Claims outstanding - gross

Linked non-participating immsurance contracts
Linked non-participating investment contracts
Technical provision for inked liabilities
Reinsurers' share

Deferred acquisition costs

Fund for future appropriations
Non-participating value of in-force business in the With Profits fund
SRC n the UK Long Term Fund

Total long term insurance funds

2010 2009
£m fm
300 154
2010 2009
£m £m
9,123 9,142
19,983 17,544
5,104 5,005
34,210 31,691
209 208
7,961 7,292
25,891 23,480
33,852 30,772
(26,290) (22,798)
(788) (824)
1,446 1,284
337 (328)
1,352 1,260
43,654 41,295

Valuation assumptions have been determined 1n accordance with rules relating to the valuation of liabilities as
published by the FSA Full disclosure of valuation assumptions, including the assumed margins for the risk of
default on assets backing technical provisions, are disclosed in the Abstract of Valuation Report contained
within the FSA retumns These FSA returns are due to be submutted to the regulator by 31 March 2011 and will

then be available to any policyholder on request
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17. Long term insurance funds (continued)

(ii} Expected undiscounted cash flows

Date of undiscounted cash flow

Over Carrying

0-5 years 5-15 years 15-25 years 25 years  Total value
As at 31 December 2010 £m £m fm fm im £m
Long Term Business Provision
Life and pensions participating insurance
contracts 5,755 3,515 973 320 10,563 9,123
Life and pensions non-participating
msurance contracts 8,013 16,900 13,551 15,755 54,219 26,858
Life and pensions participating mvestment
contracts 2,268 2,943 1,195 102 6,508 5,104
Claims outstanding - gross 209 - - - 209 209
Technical provisions for non-unit linked
habilities 16,245 23,358 15,719 16,177 71,499 41,294

Date of undiscounted cash flow

Over Carrying

0-5 years  5-15 years 15-25 years 25 years  Total value
As at 31 December 2009 £m fm £m £m £m £m
Long Term Business Provision
Life and pensions participating mnsurance
contracts 5,695 3,829 1,067 369 10,960 9,142
Life and pensions non-participating
msurance contracts 71,077 14,577 12,442 15,300 49,396 23,764
Life and pensions participating investment
contracts 2,243 2,982 1,365 142 6,732 5,005
Claims outstanding - gross 208 - - - 208 208
Technical provisions for non-unit linked
liabilities 15,223 21,388 14,874 15811 67,296 38,119

Amounts under unit hinked contracts are generally repayable on demand and Society 1s responsible for ensuring
there 15 sufficient hiquidity within the asset portfolio to enable Liabilities to unit linked policyholders to be met as
they fall due However, the terms of funds investing 1n less liquid assets perrut the deferral of redemptions for
predefined periods 1n circumstances where there are not sufficient liquid assets within the fund to meet the level of
requested redempuons Accordingly umt inked hiabilities have been excluded from the table
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18. Long term insurance valuation assumptions
Non-participating business

For 1ts non-participating business Society seeks to make prudent assumptions about 1ts future expenence based on
current market conditions and recent expenience The approach used to set non-participaung assumptions 1s generally
simular to that used to determine the assumptions used for FSA Regulatory Peak 1, although the actual assumptions
may sometimes differ from those used for regulatory reporting purposes These assumptions incorporate prudent
margins 1 excess of best estimate assumptions to reduce the possibility of actual experience being less favourable
than assumed

Valuation rates of interest and discount rates

The valuation interest rate for each contract type 1s based on the yield on the assets backing the contract adjusted for
the nsk that asset proceeds are not recerved by Society For some business, this yield 1s the gross redemption yield on
fixed interest securities and the runntng yield on vanable wnterest securities For other business 1t 15 the Internal Rate
of Return on the portfolie of backing assets

In 2010 Society continued to hold reserves to protect agamnst the nsk of credit default For approved securtues and
swaps backing both with and non-profit business, the allowance remains at 3 bps per annum (2009 3bps) For
unapproved securities backing non-profit annuity business the credit default allowances equate to £1 Sbn, or 64 bps
per annum (2009 £1 5bn, or 68 bps respectively) when expressed over the duration of the assets held A simlar
methodology has been used for assets backing with-profits business

Society believes the total default allowance 15 prudent to cover all reasonably foreseeable circumstances

For equity investments, the yield 1s based on the current dividend yield, adjusted for prudence

For property holdings, yields are based on the rental income payable calculated by considering different categones of
tenant separately, adjusted for the possibility of default Default rates used in the calculations vary by tenant category

Mortality and morbidity

Mortality and morbidity assumptions are set with reference to standard tables drawn up by the Continuous Mortality
Investigation Bureau (CMIB) of the Institute and Faculty of Actuanes These tables are based on industry wide
experience

The majonty of mternal statistical imvestigations are carried out at least annually to determine the extent to which
Society’s expenience differs from that of the industry and suggest appropnate adjustments which need to be made to
the valuation assumptions

Persistency

Society momtors 1ts persistency experience and carnes out detaled investigauons annually Persistency can be
volatile and past experience may not be an appropnate future indicator

Society tnes to balance past expenence and future conditions by making prudent assumptions about the future
expected long term average persistency levels

For non-participating contracts where explicit persistency assumpuons are not made, prudence 15 also incorporated
mto the liabilities by ensuning that they are sufficient to cover the more onerous of the two scenarios where the
policies either remain in-force unul maturity or where they discontinue at the valuation date
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18. Long term insurance valuation assumptions (continued)
Expenses

Society moniters 1ts expense experience and carnies out detailed mnvestigations regularly to deterrmine the
expenses mncurred in writing and administening the different products and classes of business An allowance for
expense inflation in the future 1s also made taking account of both salary and price informauon

Participating business

For 1its participating business Society seeks to establish 1ts liabiliies at their realistic value in line with the
requirements set out in FRS 27

Non-economic assumptions are set to represent Society’s best estimates of future experience
Economic assumptions

Realistic valuation requires a market consistent economic model The model 1s calibrated using market data from
a vanety of market sources This enables assumpuions to be determuned for the term structure of risk-free interest
rates, property and equity volauhty Risk-free interest rates are determuned with reference to the gilt-yield curve
on the valuation date increased by 10bps

Property volatihity 1s set with reference to historic variations in property prices Equity volatitity 1s set so that the
model reproduces observed market prices of traded equity derivatives Correlations between asset classes are
based on historic data

Each investment scenario contams a consistent set of assumptions for mvestment returns and mflation
Future bonuses

Future reversionary and terminal bonuses are consistent with the bonus policies set out in Society's Principles and
Practices of Financtal Management

Value of in-force for non-participating business

Society creates an asset for the expected value of future profits arising on non-participaung contracts written in
the with-profits part of the Society LTF

The economic assumptions used to calculate the value of these profits are consistent with those used to calculate
habiliues for with-profits business, with the addition of a Irquidity premuum 1n respect of assets backing non-
participating annuity busiess Non-economic assumptions represent best estimates of expected future expenence
on this business An explicit allowance 1s made for non-market risk

Guaranteed annuity options

The guarantees are valued on a market consistent basis The valuation methodology allows for the correlation
between interest rates and the proportion of policyholders who take up the option

Guaranteed cash options

The hability 15 deterrmined assumung that policyholders choose the most valuable alternative between the annuity
and cash available at retirement
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18. Long term insurance valuation assumptions (continued)

Premiums - non-participating business

For those contracts where the policyholder does not have the right to vary the amount of the premium paid, full
credit 1s taken for the premiurns contractually due at the valuation date For contracts where the policyholder has
the option to vary the rate of premuum, the provision 1s taken as being the higher of the amount calculated as if the
policyholder continues to make premium payments or, alternatively, ceases to pay premiums altogether

Persistency - non-participating business

Lapse rates are used 1n the valuation of certain classes of long term business Where this 1s the case, the valuation
persistency basis 1s set by applying a prudenual margin over the best estimate assumptions See the tables on pages
48 & 49 for the major products where lapse rates have been used

For term assurance business, the margin acts to increase the best estimate lapse rate 1n the early part of a policy's
hifeume (when 1t 1s being treated as an asset) but to reduce the best estimate lapse rate later in the policy's ifetime
(when 1t 1s treated as a hability) The crossover point at which the margin changes direction 15 assessed for broad
product groups but applhied at a policy by pelicy level Any hability to remsurers on discontinuance within the first
four years from inception 1s allowed for explicitly 1n the cash flows using the valuation lapse basis, together with a
prudent allowance for clawback of commussion from agents upon lapse

For unitised business, the margin acts to either increase or decrease the best estimate lapse rates, depending upon
which approach results 1n the higher hability The direction of the margin 1s assessed for unit life business and unit
pensions business separately

A summary of the lapse basis for major classes of business, as defined by the requirements of the annual returns to
the FSA, 1s shown 1n table (111) on page 48

The following notes refer to tables (1) and (11) on page 47

1 For product groups where liabiliues are posiuive, the lower interest rate of 2 25% or 2 50% — 3 50% 1s used
(2009 2 50% — 375%) However, for product groups where hiabilittes are negative, the higher rate of 7 60%
(2009 7 60%) 1s used

2 For termn assurance with critical 1llness, morbidity rates are assumed to deteriorate at a rate of 0 50% pa for
males and 075% pa for females (2009 0 50% pa for males and 0 75% pa for females) There 1s an additive
loading of 1% for guaranteed term contracts post pohicy duration 5 (2009 An addiuonal loading was appled for
guaranteed level term contracts of 0 85% mulitphed by policy term less 5 years, for decreasing term contracts the
rate was 0 65% multiplied by policy term less 5 years)

3 For vested annuities, mortality rates are assumed to reduce according to CMIB's mortality improvement model
CMI 2009 with the following parameters Males Long Term Rate of 2% p a up to age 85 tapering 10 0% at 120
Females Long Term Rate of 15% pa up to age 85 tapering to 0% at 120 (2009 CMIB Working Paper 30
projection MC with a mummum of 2 0% pa up to age 90 tapering a mimmum of 0% pa at age 120 for males For
females, mortality rates are assumed to reduce according to 75% CMIB projecuon MC with a mimmum of 1 5%
pa up to age 90 tapenng to a mumimum of 0% pa at age 120 ) For certain annwities, a further allowance 1s made for
the effect of imtial selection

4 Table created by blending PCXAQ0 with PNXAQO tables The base table used 1s PNMAOQC up to and including

age 55 and PCMAQO for age 65 and above for males The 1dentical method 15 applied to females using PNFAQO
and PCFAQO
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18. Long term insurance valuation assumptions (continued)

The table below sets out the current valuation assumptions used to establish the long term Liabilities for Society

Full disclosure of the valuation assumptions are set out in the Abstract of the Valuation Report contaned within the FSA

returns

The principal assumptions are

(i) Rate of interest/discount rate
Non-Participating Business
Life assurances

Pension assurances
Annuties 1n deferment

Annuittes 1n deferment (RPI hinked, net rate

after allowance for inflation)
Vested annuities

Vested annuittes (RPI linked, net rate after

allowance for inflation)
Participating Business

Rusk free rate (10 years)
Future bonuses

UK Equity volatility (10 year option term)

Property volaulity

(in) Mortahty Tables

Non-Participating Business

Non-linked individual term assurances
- Smokers

- Non-smokers

- Smoker status unknown

Non-hinked individual term assurances
with cntical illness

Other non-linked non profit hfe
assurances

Annuities 1n deferment

Vested anpuities’

- Bulk purchase annuities

- Other annmities

2010
225%pa and 7.60%pa’

2.50 - 3.50% pa and 7 60%pa’
4.975% pa

1040% pa
4.79 -4 975% pa

0.40 - 1.040% pa

3.78% pa

Determuned stochastically
in line with bonus policy
as stated in PPFM

262%

15.0%

2010
96 - 116% TMS00 / TFS00 Set 52
93 - 136% TMNO00 / TFN0O Sel 52

103% TM00 / TFOO Sel 5°

68 - 99% CIBT93M /F Ult Comb?

A67/70 suitably age adjusted’

88 - 92% PNMAOO/PNFA00*

89 - 93% PCMAO0(/PCFA00
55 - 86% PCMAO00/PCFA00
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2009
2 25%pa and 7 60%pa !
275-375% pa and 7 60%pa '
5 49%pa

131%pa
505 -5 49%pa

050-131%pa

4 39%pa

Determined stochastically
1n line with bonus policy
as stated in PPFM

26 5%

15 0%

2009

105 - 114% TMSQ0 / TFS0Q Sel 5°

95 - 115% TMNOO / TFNOO Sel 5°

129% TMO00 / TF0O Sel 5°

66 - 101% CIBT93M / F Ult Comb®

AG67/70 surtably age adjusted’

67 - 710% AM92 / AF92

90% - 94% PCMAQQ / PCFAQO
60% - 88% PCMAQO / PCFAQO
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18. Long term insurance valuation assumptions (continued)
(iii) Persistency - non-participating business (continued)

2010 Average lapse rate for the policy years

Product 1-5 6-10 11-15 16 - 20
% Yo % %
Level term 13.9 9.4 6.0 3.1
Decreasing term 14.1 9.5 64 6.0
Accelerated cntical illness cover 21.2 10.7 55 5.2
Pensions term 12.7 8.5 6.0 56
Whole of Life (convenuonal non-profit} 41 1.9 09 0.0
Savings endowment (umused with-profit) 00 1.7 22 4.4
Target cash endowment (unitised with-profits) 32 32 32 2.6
Savings endowment (unit linked) 00 17 22 4.4
Target cash endowment (unit linked) 32 32 32 2.6
Bond (umitised with-profits) 11 20 25 24
Bond (umit hinked) 26 63 39 35
Individual pension regular premuum (unitised with-profits) 12 11 11 11
Individual pension regular premuum {umt iinked) 22 16 1.4 14
Group penston regular prermum (umitised with-profits) 21 21 20 20
Group penston regular prermum (unit hinked) 2.1 19 1.3 1.3
Trustee Investment Plan regular premium (umitised with-profits) 14 14 14 14
Trustee Investment Plan regular premium (unit linked) 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3
Individual pension single premium (unitised wath-profits) 34 33 32 32
Individual pensien single premiurn (unit hnked) 4.0 35 27 2.7
Group penston single premium (umitised with-profits) 11.2 11.2 11.2 11.2
Group penston single premuum (umt hnked) 7.6 7.6 7.6 7.6
Trustee Investment Plan single premuum (unitised with-profits) 6.4 53 3.8 3.8
Trustee Investment Plan single premium (umit linked) 6.8 58 4.3 4.3
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18. Long term insurance valuation assumptions (continued)

(iii) Persistency - non-participating business (continued)

2009 Average lapse rate for the policy years

Product 1-5 6-10 11-15 16-20
% Do % %
Level term 139 95 60 31
Decreasing term 142 97 65 60
Accelerated cntical 1llness cover 200 106 54 50
Pensions term 125 86 57 51
Whole of Life (conventional non-profit) 42 20 07 00
Savings endowment (unitised with-profit) 00 17 23 43
Target cash endowment (unitised with-profits) 37 34 37 29
Savings endowment (umt hinked) 00 17 23 43
Target cash endowment (unit hinked) 37 34 37 29
Bond (unitised with-profits} 12 30 29 30
Bend (unit linked) 24 63 39 37
Individual pension regular premium (unitised with-profits) 14 13 13 13
Individual pension regular premuum (unit hinked) 21 15 16 16
Group penston regular premium (unmitised with-profits}) 17 17 17 17
Group pension regular premium {umt linked} 14 14 i2 12
Trustee Investment Plan regular prenuum {(unitised with-profits}) 04 04 04 04
Trustee Investment Plan regular premium (umt linked) 13 13 13 13
Individual pension single premum {unitised with-profits) 31 29 29 29
Individual pension single premmum (unit hnked) je6 32 25 25
Group pension single premium (umtised wath-profits) 95 95 95 95
Group pension single premium (unit hinked) 73 73 73 73
Trustee Investment Plan single premuum (umtsed with-profits) 93 90 86 86
Trustee Investment Plan single prermum (umit hinked) 64 55 41 41

Endowment reserve

The endowment reserve has been set taking reasonable account of an assessment of the expected future
population of complaints, the expected uphold rate for these complaints, the potential impact of any Financial
Ombudsman Service decisions on referred complaints and the average compensation per complaint

Overseas business

In calculating the long term business provisions for internanonal long term business operations, local actuanal
tables and nterest rates are used
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19. Analysis of other debtors 2010 2009
£m £m
Deferred tax asset (note 20) 251 399
Other debtors 200 152
451 551
20. Deferred tax (see Note 5) 2010 2009
£m £m
(Asset) at 1 January (399) (579)
Deferred tax movement ansing from Part VII transfer-in of business - 4
Charge for the year 148 194
(Asset) at 31 December (251) (399)
The provision for deferred tax consists of the following amounts
2010 2009
£m £m
Unrealised net gatns on investments 125 18
The excess of depreciation over capital allowances 39 (40)
Tax losses camed forward (205) (233)
Timing difference between accounts and tax deduction for expenses of
management (13D (143)
Other (1) 1))
(251) (399)

Deferred tax has been determined using the rate of corporation tax applicable from 31 December 2010 of 28%

(2009 28%)

The deferred tax asset of £251m has been recognised based on projections of taxable profits

21. (a) Amounts owed to credit institutrons 2010 2009
fm £m
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts repayable,
otherwise than by instalments, within one year - 1
" (b) Analysis of other creditors
Tax 140 123
Amounts owed to group undertakings and partictpating interests 888 950
Other Creditors 253 174
1,281 1,247
All creditors are payable within 5 years
(c) Provisions
Trai1l Commussion 164 147
Other 13 15
182 162

The trail comnussion hiability 1s the present value of future trail commussion on the existing business book at 31

December 2010 Tral commussion 1s amortised over a period representing twice the expected average term of
the business This 1s currently 13 years for hife business and 20 years for pensions business
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22.

23.

24,

Parent companies and fellow subsidianes

The immediate parent company 1s Legal & General Insurance Holdings Limuted, a company 1incorporated tn England
and Wales The immediate parent company for Legal & Genera! Insurance Holdings Limuted 1s Legal & General
Insurance Holdings (No 2) Limuted Legal & General Insurance Holdings Limuted and Legal & General Insurance
Holdings (No 2) Limuted are exempt from the obligation to prepare and deliver group accounts as they are wholly-
owned subsidianies of Legal & General Group Plc, which heads the smallest and largest group of undertakings for
which consolidated financial statements are prepared, a company incorporated 1n England and Wales

The results of Legal & General Assurance Society Limted are included in the Legal & General Group Plc
consolidated financial statements and therefore Legal & General Assurance Society Limuted does not prepare
consolidated financial statements These accounts therefore provide informauon about Legal & General Assurance
Society Limuted as an individual undertaking Copies of the accounts of the ultimate holding company, Legal &
General Group Plc, are available, at the Registered Office, One Coleman Street, London EC2R 5AA, on the group
website at www legalandgeneralgroup com or from the Company Secretary

Auditors' remuneration

Fees payable to Society's auditor for the audit of Society’s financial statements were £405,937 (2009 £399,704)
The disclosure of fees payable to the auditor and 1ts associates for other (non-audit) services has not been made
because this has been disclosed 1n the conschidated financial statements of Society's ultimate holding company

Contingent liablities, guarantees and indemmties

Provision for the habilities arising under contracts with policyholders 1s based on certain assumptions The vanance
of actual experience from that assumed may result mn such habilites differing from the provisions made for them
Liabilities may also anise 1n respect of claims relating to the interpretation of such contracts, or the curcumstances in
which policyholders have entered into them (together in this paragraph "habihties") The extent of such habilities 15
influenced by a number of factors including the actions and requirements of the FSA, ombudsman rulings, industry
compensation schemes and court judgements The continuing general profile and emphasis being given by the FSA
and other bodies to the suitability of the past sales of endowment policies 1n the context of some mortgage
transactions has led to the continuing receipt of claims from holders of endowment policies

Society recetves claims and becomes involved n actual or threatened liigaton and regulatory 1ssues from time to
time Provision for habilities continues to be made and 15 regularly reviewed However, 1t 18 not possible to predict,
with certainty, the extent and the tmung of the financral impact to which these clamms, hiugation or 1ssues may give
nse Society nevertheless considers that 1t makes prudent provision, as and when circumstances calling for such
provision become clear, and that each has adequate capital and reserves to meet all reasonably foreseeable
eventualities

In 1975 Society was required by the Institute of London Underwniters (ILU) to execute the ILU form of guarantee in
respect of policies 1ssued through the ILU’s Policy Sigming Office on behalf of NRG Victory Reinsurance Company
Ltd (Victory), a company which was then a subsidiary of Society In 1990, Nederlandse Reassurantie Groep Holding
NV (the assets and Lhabihties of which have since been assumed by Nederlandse Reassurantie Groep NV under a
statutory merger 1n the Netherlands) acqured Victory and provided an indemmty to Society against any liabihity
Society may have as a result of the ILU’s requirement, and the ILU agreed that its requirement of Society would not
apply to policies written or renewed after the acquisiion Whether Society has any hability as a result of the ILU’s
requirement and, 1f so, the amount of 1ts potential hability 15 uncertain Society has made no payment or provision in
respect of this matter

Society has given indemmities and guarantees, including interest rate guarantees, as a normal part of its operating
activities or 1n relation to capital market transactions
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25,

26

27.

Commitments

Authorised and contracted commutments by the LTF not provided for 1n respect of investments, relatng to property
development and Pnvate Equity, payable after 31 December 2010 are £225m (2009 £134m)

Pension costs

Society has no direct employees and hence makes no direct contributions towards retirement benefits

Directors' emoluments

2010 2009
£'000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 1,640 1,370

These figures represent that portion of the directors’ emoluments allocated 1n respect of their services to Society No
fees were paid by Society to the directors Dhirectors are not employees of the Society, but their services are reflected
1n a management charge levied by the parent Emoluments relate to salanes and performance bonuses

Retirement benefits are accruing to 5 directors under a defined benefit pension scheme One director 15 a member of
a defined contnbution pension scheme and the value of the apportioned company contribution n the year 1s
£22,179

Highest paid director
Emoluments 565 452
Defined benefit pension scheme accrued at end of year* 25 23

* Accreed pension represents the amount of the annual pension that would be payable to the director when he
reaches normal pension age

Directors’ emoluments for the Group during the year have been attributed to Society on the basis of the time spent on
Society business by each Director

Directors’ loans
At 31 December 2010 there were no loans to directors (2009 none)
Directors' transactions and arrangements

No director had any matenal interest 1n any contract or arrangement of significance in relation to the business of
Society duning 2010
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28.

29.

30.

31

Associated undertakings

Society has the following significant holdings which have been included as investments designated as FVTPL

Country of % equity shares

Company name incorporation held by Society
English Cities Fund England and Wales 37 50
Meteor Industrial Partnership England and Wales 49 95
The Leisure Fund Umit Trust England and Wales 22 31
The Warrington Retail Unit Trust Jersey 49 05
Arlington Business Parks Unit Trust Jersey 3251
Bracknell Property Unit Trust Jersey 43 39
Northampten Shopping Centre Unit Trust Jersey 8603
Central St Gites Unit Trust Jersey 4539
Ealing Shopping Centre Uit Trust Jersey 8603
Chmeham Shopping Centre Uniat Trust Jersey 8603
UK Logistics Umt Trust Jersey 3671
ARC Property Fund Jersey 8000
Gresham Street Unit Trust Jersey 100 00
Bucklersbury House Umt Trust Jersey 86 03
L& G UK Property Income Fund Jersey Lid Jersey 3100
Performance Retail Unat Trust Jersey 66 67
Legal & General Life Fund Limuted Partnership England and Wales 100 00

Employee information

Society does not have direct employees since they are employed by a fellow subsidiary of Legal & General Group
Plc Society 1s recharged a proportion of the staff costs

Related party transactions

Transactions invelving directors and key management
No contract of sigmficance existed at any time during the year in which a director or key manager was matenally
mterested or which requires disclosure as a related party transaction as defined under FRS 8

Unit trusts

During the year, the long term business fund of Society has invested in a number of unit trusts managed by Legal &
General (Unit Trust Managers) Lirmted, a subsidiary of Legal & General Group Pic As at 31 December 2010 the
value of the units held by the long term business funds was £5,335m (2009 £4,585m)

Share based payments

Legal & General Group Pic (the Group} grants share based payments to employees within the Group The Group
recognises an expense for these payments measured indirectly by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted The expense 1s recogmsed over the vesting peniod as the services are received The relevant
company has recharged its share of this expense with reference to the benefits 1t receives from the employees The
full disclosures required by FRS 20 are provided 1n the consolidated Group [FRS financial staternents

The total expense recharged to the Society i relation to share based payments was £2 1m (2009 £11 4m)
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32.

33.

34,

Exchange rates

Pnincipal rates of exchange used for translatton into sterling at the end of the year

2010 2009
Euro 1.17 113
US dollar 1.57 162

Operating lease commitments and rentals

Society has annual commutments 1n respect of non-cancellable operating leases as follows

2010 2009

Operating leases which expire £m £m
Within one year 12 12
Between one and five years 44 47
After five years 83 92
139 151

Financial risk management

34.1 Financial risk management ohjective

Society's primary objective in undertaking risk management activity 1s to manage nsk exposure in line with risk
appetite, nunimising 1its exposure to unexpected financial loss and limiting the potential for deviation from
anticipated cutcomes

34.2 Risk Management Approach

Society 15 exposed to financial nsk through its financial assets, financial liabilities, reinsurance assets and
policyholder habilities The most important components of this financial nsk are market risk, credt nsk and
Liqguidity nisk and these are defined below

Market nsk 1s the nsk ansing from fluctuations 1n mterest rates, exchange rates, share prices, property values and
other relevant market prices

Credit nsk 15 the risk of loss 1if another party fails to perform its financial obligations to Society

Qverall responsibility for the management of Society’s exposure to risk 1s vested 1n Society's Board To support it
m this role, a nisk framework 13 1 place compnsing a structure of formal commuttees, nsk assessment and
reporting processes and nsk review functions The framework provides assurance that nsks are being
appropnately 1dentified and managed and that an independent assessment of nisks 1s being performed

34.3 Management of risks

Society seeks to manage 1ts exposures to financial nisk through control techniques so as to ensure that the residual
nsk exposures that are within acceptable tolerances agreed by the Board The key control techmques for the
major categories of financial nsk exposure are summansed below
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34, Financial risk management (continued)
34.3 Management of risks (continuned)

Asset Analysis

The Society has categonsed 1ts assets and liabilities 1n the following disclosure 1n accordance with the level of
shareholder exposure to market and credit risks The four categorisations presented are

Unit hnked

For unit linked contracts, there 1s a direct hink between the mvestments and the obligations Umt linked
business 1s written 1 the Society LTF The financial risk on these contracts 1s borne by the pohicyholders The
Society 1s, therefore, not directly exposed to any market risk, currency nisk or credit nisk for these contracts
Detailed risk disclosures have not been presented for unit linked assets and habilites

With-profits

Policyholders and shareholders share 1n the nisks and returns of the with-profits part of the Society LTF
Participating contracts offer policyholders the possibility of payment of benefits 1 addition to the guarantees
under the contract The return to shareholders on virtually atl participating contracts 18 1n the form of a transfer
to shareholders’ equity, which 1s analogous to a dividend from the Society LTF and 1s dependent upon the
bonuses credited or declared on policies 1n that year The bonuses are broadly based on historic and current
rates of return on equity, property and fixed income securnties, as well as expectations of future investment
returns The with-profits classification excludes umt linked centracts

At 30 June 2005 an assessment was made of the expected cost of guarantees and options to be paid n the
future, and funds with the same value to meet these costs were associated from the capital 1n the With Profits
sub fund The value of the funds 1s regularly assessed and 1s reduced by the cost of guarantees and options paid
since 1 July 2005 At each assessment pomt, 1f the value of the funds 1s lower than the expected cost of
guarantees and options, 1t 15 intended to make deductions from Asset Shares to cover the difference It 15
mntended to hmit deductions to no more than 0 75% each year, up to a maximum of 5% per policy

Following the movement 1n the expected cost and the value of the associated funds up to 31 December 2010 a
deduction of 0 2% was made to the asset shares This followed a refund of 0 4% made 1n respect of the year to
31 December 2009 In the techmcal provisions, allowance was also made for future deductions 1n respect of the
expected costs of meeting future guarantees and options not covered by the current year deduction For
policyholders who decide to surrender, a charge will generally be made 1n respect of the expected cost of
guarantees and options not covered by the charge already taken

Non profit non-unit linked
Shareholders are exposed to the risk and rewards of ownership of assets backing non profit non-umt hinked
business held within UK LTFs

Shareholder assets

All other assets are classified as shareholder assets Sharcholders of the Society are directly exposed to market
and credit risk on these assets

34.4 Market risk

Society's exposure to market nisk 1s influenced by one or more external factors, including changes 1n specified
interest rates, financial instrument prices, foreign exchange rates, and indices of prices or rates

Sigmificant areas where Society 1s exposed to these risks are

* Assets backing insurance and 1investment contracts other than linked contracts

» Assets and habilites denomnated in foreign currencies
» Other financial assets and habilities
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34. Financial risk management (continued)
34.5 Currency risk

Society 1s exposed to foreign exchange nsk due to long term business assets and liabihities denomunated 1n non-sterling
currencies and 1ts holdings n overseas subsidiaries Where appropnate, Society protects 1ts exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations through currency denvatives

The table below summarises Soctety's exposure to foreign currency exchange risk expressed in Sterling However there
18 no nisk 1n respect of Sterling as 1t 1s the functional currency Non-linked assets and habilities are reported 1n therr
underlying currency

Exposure to currency risk

Sterhng Euro us Yen Other  Carrying

Shareholder assets value
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Assets
Tangible assets 28 - - - - 28
Investments 1,793 30 97 - 37 1,957
Investments 1n group undertakings 2,500 - - - - 2,500
Purchased imterests in long term business 3 - - - - 3
Other operational assets 131 - - - - 131
Total assets 4,455 30 97 - 37 4,619
Liabilities
Deferred habilities - - - - - -
Other creditors (1,031) (14) - - - (1,045)
Total liabilities (1,031) (14) - - - (1,045)

Sterling Euro us Yen Other  Carrying
Non profit non-unit inked value

2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Assets
Tangible assets - - - - - -
Investments 30 - - - - 30
Investments m group undertakings - - - - - -
Purchased 1nterests 1n long term business - - - - - -
Other operational assets 27,256 - - - - 27,256
Total assets 27,286 - - - - 27,286
Liabilities
Technical provisions (24,976) - - - - (24,976)
Deferred habilities (329) - - - . (329
Other creditors (62) - - - - (62)
Total liabilities (25,367) - - - - (25,367)
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34. Financial risk management (continued)

34.5 Currency risk (continued)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

Sterling Euro us Yen Other Carrying

With-profits value
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m fm £m £m £m

Assets
Tangible assets - - - - - -
Investments 13,693 1,626 914 505 797 17,540
Investments i group undertakings 5 - - - - 5
Purchased mnterests 1n long term business - - - - - -
Other operational assets 517 - 3 - - 520
Total assets 14,220 1,626 217 505 797 18,065
Liabihties
Techmcal provisions (16,322) - - - - (16,322)
Fund for future appropriations (1,446) - - - - {1,446)
Semor borrowngs 8 - - . . (8)
Deferred habilities (57) - - - - (57)
Other creditors 452 (650) (204) . . (402)
Total liabilities (17,381) (650) (204) - - (18,235)

Sterling Euro us Yen Other Carrying
Shareholder assets value

2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Assets
Tangble assets 27 - - - - 27
Invesiments 1,067 14 103 - 30 1,214
Investments in group undertakings 2,675 - - - . 2,675
Purchased interests in long term business 3 - - - - 3
Other operational assets 177 - - - - 177
Total assets 3,949 14 103 - 30 4,096
Liabilities
Deferred habihities 57 - - - . 57
Other creditors (958) - - - - (958)
Total liabilities (901) - - - - (901)
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34. Financial risk management (continued)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

Non Profit non-unit linked Sterling Euro Us Yen Other Carrying
value
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Tangible assets - - - - - -
Investments 175 - - - - 175

Investments 1n group undertakings - - - - - -
Purchased interests n long term busiess - - - - - -

Other operational assets 24,018 - - - - 24,018
Total assets 24,193 - - - - 24,193
Laabihties
Technical provisions (21,999 - - - - (21,999)
Deferred habilities (324) - - - - (324)
Other creditors (152) - - - - (152)
Total liahlities (22,475) - - - - (22,475)
With-profits Sterling Euro us Yen Other Carrying
value
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
£m £m £m fm £m £m
Assets
Tangible assets - - - - - -
Investments 14,929 721 645 406 681 17,382
Investments 1n group undertakings 5 - - - - 5
Purchased interests 1in long term business - - - - - -
Other operational assets 202 - 1 - - 203
Total assets 15,136 721 646 406 681 17,590
Liabilities
Technical provisions (16,123} - - - - (16,123)
Fund for future appropriations {1,284) - - - - (1,284)
Senior borrowings - - - - - .
Deferred habilities (17 - - - - (177
Other creditors (264) (19) (23) (1) (1 (308)
Total liabilities (17,848) (19 (23) (1) (1) (17,892)
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34,

34.6

Financial risk management (continued)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

Currency sensitivity

The Society's management of currency nsk reduces shareholders exposure to exchange rate fluctuations The
Society's exposure to a 10% exchange movement in the euro and US dollar, 1s detailed below

Euro us Euro us

2010 2010 2009 2009

£m £m £m £m

10% appreciation impact on profit after tax/equity 71 58 52 52

The impact of a depreciation impact 15 expected to be symmetrical
Other price risk

Other price risk 1s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes 1n market prices other than those arising from interest rate nsk or currency rnisk These changes may be as a
result of features of the individual instrument, its 1ssuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded 1n
the market

Society controls 1ts exposure to geographic price risks by using mternal country ratings These ratings are based on
macroeconomic data and key qualitative idicators The latter take into account the economic, social and political
environments The table indicates Society's exposure to different equity markets around the world Unit linked equity
instruments are excluded from the table as the risk 15 retained by the policyholder
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34. Fmanaal nsk management (continued)

Exposure to worldwide markets

Shareholder  Non profit With-profits  Shareholder Non profit ~ Whth-profits

assets non-unit assets nen-umt

hnked linked
2010 2010 2010 2009 2009 2009
£m £m £fm £m £m £fm
UK 422 - 2,199 375 - 2,027
North America - - 422 - - 363
Europe 25 - 688 22 - 630
Japan - - 492 - - 401
Asia Pacific 26 - 448 28 - 461
Other 11 - 144 3 - 57
Listed equities 484 - 4,393 428 - 3,939
Unlisted UK equities 89 - 1,609 g2 - 953
Holdings in unit trusts 499 - 1,173 485 i 1,029
Total equities 1,072 - 6,575 395 1 5,921

34,7 Credit risk

Sigmficant areas where Society 1s exposed to credit nisk are

+ Society holds corporate bonds to back part of its insurance habiiies Sigmficant exposures are managed by the
application of concentration Limits, with allowance being made 1n the actuarial valuation of the msurance fiabilities for
possible defaults

» Society himts 1ts exposure to insurance nisk by ceding part of the nisks 1t assumes to the reinsurance market To lmit
the nisk of remnsurer default Society operates a credit rating policy when arranging cover When selecting new
remsurance partners, Society considers only compames that have a mummum credit rating equvalent to A- from
Standard & Poors Exposure hmits for new and existing reinsurers are determined based on credit ratings and projected
exposure

Aggregate counterparty exposures are regularly monitored

The table overleaf shows the credit profile of Society's assets exposed to credit nsk The credit rating bands are provided
by mndependent rating agencies For unrated assets the group maintans internal ratings which are used to manage
exposure to these counterparties Unit hinked assets have not been included as shareholders are not directly exposed to
nsk The carrying amount of non-umt hnked assets included in the balance sheet represents the maximum credit
exposure
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Financial risk management (continued)

Exposure to credit risk

Shareholder assets

31 December 2010

Government securities
Other fixed rate securities
Variable rate securities
Total debt securities
Accrued Interest

Loans & receivables
Derivative assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial investments
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other assets

Non profit non-unit hinked
31 December 2010

Other fixed rate securities

Variable rate secunities

Total debt securities

Denvative assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial investments

Remnsurers' share of contract habilies
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other assets

BB &

AAA AA A BEB below Unrated Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
222 . - - - - 222
33 23 103 61 22 1 243
7 2 2 - - - 11
262 25 105 61 22 1 476
3 - 2 2 1 1) 7

- 6 6 - - n 11

- 4 3 - - - 7

- 46 332 - - - 378
265 81 448 63 23 (1) 879
- . - - - 76 76

- 19 - - - 4 23
265 100 448 63 23 79 978

BB &

AAA AA A BBB below Unrated Total
£m £m £m £m £fm £m £m
- 1 - . - - 1

- - 1 - - - 1

- 1 1 - - - 2

- - - - - 1 1

- 7 20 - - 1 28

- 8 21 - - 2 k)|

- 770 860 - - 24420 26,050

- - - - - 139 139

- - - - - 110 110

- 778 881 - - 24671 26,330
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Financial risk management (continued)

Exposure to credit risk (continued)
With-profits

31 December 2010

Government securiiies
Other fixed rate securities
Varniable rate securities
Total debt securities
Accrued Interest

Loans & receivables
Derivative assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial investments
Reinsurers' share of contract Liabtlities
Other assets

At the year end Society held collateral in respect of derivative assets of £16m {2009

Shareholder assets

31 December 2009

Government securities

Vanable rate securities

Total debt securities

Accrued Interest

Loans and recervables

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial investments

Remnsurers' share of contract liabilies
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other assets

BB &
AAA AA A BBB below Unrated Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £fm
1,667 4 - - - 1 1,672
2,803 1,098 2,290 1,270 140 373 7,974
47 12 26 4 - 5 94
4,517 1,114 2,316 1,274 140 379 9,740
68 19 56 29 1 4 177
- 40 47 - - 1 88
- 6 49 - - 29 84
278 300 178 - - 1 757
4,863 1,479 2,646 1,303 141 414 10,846
- . 1 . . (D R
- - - - - 122 122
4,863 1,479 2,647 1,303 141 535 10,968
£9m)
BB &
AAA AA A BBB below Unrated Total
£m £m £m £m £fm £m £m
69 - - - - - 69
11 2 4 - - i 18
80 p 4 - - 1 87
1 - - - - - 1
- 17 16 - - - 33
- 7 83 - - - 50
81 26 103 - - 1 211
- - - - - 2 2
- . - - - 112 112
- 15 - - - 6 21
81 41 103 - - 121 346
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Financial risk management (continued)

Exposure to credit risk (continued)
Non profit non-umt linked

31 December 2009

Government securities

Other fixed rate securities

Vartable rate securities

Total debt securities

Accrued Interest

Loans and receivables

Denrivative assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial investments

Remnsurers' share of contract habliies
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other assets

With-profits

31 December 2009

Government securities

Other fixed rate securities

Vartable rate securities

Total debt securities

Accrued Interest

Loans and receivables

Denvative assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial investments

Reinsurers' share of contract liabilities
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other assets

BB &
AAA AA A BBB below Unrated Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
140 - - - - - 140
20 - - - - - 20
160 - - - - - 160
1 - - - - - 1
- - - - - 1 1
- - 2 - - - 2
- 2 7 - - - 9
161 2 9 - - 1 173
31 689 372 - - 21,017 22,609
- - - - 4] 41
- - - - - 113 113
192 691 881 - - 21,172 22936
BB &
AAA AA A BBB below Unrated Total
£m £m fm £m £m £m £m
1,643 16 5 - . | 1,665
2,987 709 2,358 1,326 121 513 8,014
92 21 43 4 - 5 165
4,722 746 2,406 1,330 121 519 9,844
74 17 58 41 3 11 204
- 147 148 - - 1 296
- 1 58 - - 4 63
1 52 206 - - - 959
4,797 963 3,576 1,371 124 535 11,366
- - 1 - - 2 3
- - - - - 81 81
4,797 963 3,577 1,371 124 618 11,450
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Financial risk management (continued)
34.8 Liquidity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s the risk that Society, though solvent, either does not have suffictent financial resources available to
enable 1t to meet 1ts obhigations as they fall due or can secure them only at excessive cost The Group does not seek
exposure to hquidity nisk 1n 1ts own night, but recogmises that exposure to iquidity risk can anise as a consequence
of the markets 1n which 1t operates, the products that it writes and through the execution of investment management
strategies

The liqmdity nisks to which Society's insurance businesses may be expesed pnmanly stem from low probability
events that if not adequately planned for may result in unanticipated hquidity requirements Such events may
include a flu pandemic or natural disaster teading to significantly higher levels of claims than would normally be
expected and extreme market conditions impacting the umung of cash flows or the ability to realise investments at a
given value within a specified tmeframe Collateral requirements for dertvative/futures transactions and other
types of financial instrument can also give nise to hquidity risk 1f sufficient cash or suitable alternative assets are
not be available to meet collateral calls when due

A hmited level of conuingent hquidity nisk 15 an accepted element of writing contracts of insurance However, the
Group's tnsurance businesses seek 10 mamntain sufficient liquid assets and standby faciliues to meet a prudent
estmate of the cash outflows that may arise from contngent events The level of required hiqudity to be
marntained by surance funds 15 1dentified using techmques including cash flow analysis for ranges of extreme
scenaros and stress tests for shock events

To ensure an appropriate pool of hquid assets 15 maintained 1n line with a prudent estimate of cash outflows, the
profile of investment assets held to meet future habilities from writing insurance business are structured to mnclude
an appropriate proportion of cash and other readily realisable assets The required profile 1s formally defined as
part of asset benchmarks provided to the investment managers, with regular management information provided by
the investment manager on the actual holding relative to the fund benchmarks The amount of insurance funds held
n cash and other readily realisable assets at 31 December 2010 was £406m (2009 £99m)

In addition to each insurance fund mamtaining a pool of hquid assets, the Group's Treasury funcuon provides
formal facilities to the Group's operating substdianes to cover contingent hquidity requirements ansing from more
extreme events and where investment assets may not be reacily realisable The facihity available to each subsidiary
15 determined through analysis of potential shock events and the potential urung differences that may anse 1n cash
flows

Specific iquidity nisks associated with the Society's core product lines and the nsk mutigation techniques are as
follows -

Annuities Potental for iquidity risk anses as follows -

Future pension commutments - Once business has been wntten, cash outflows for pensions 1 payment are
generally predictable, enabling Society to structure the liquidity, income and matunty profile of investment assets
backing long term habilities to meet projected cash outflows Although vanations in longevity can alter the
duration of outflows over the long term, trends are gradual, providing opportunity to respond with appropriate nsk
rutigation strategies
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Financial risk management (continued)

34.8 Liquidity risk (continued)

The majority of the annuity portfolio 1s reassured by agreement to another group company, thereby reducing the
risk to Society Liqudity nisk may anse if the reassurer fails to meet 1ts obligations under the reassurance treaty
Cash flows under the treaty are settled on a weekly basis thereby mitigating the Liquidity nsk to Society

Protection Potential for hiquidity nisk within the Society's protection businesses may arise should the rate of claims
diverge significantly from that anticipated, typicaily as a consequence of an extreme event

The risk of bemg unable to settle claims as they fall due 1s actively managed with provision being made and cash
pools maintained within investment portfolios for a prudent esumate of the potential claims that may arise from in
force business, taking account of extreme events Such provisions are valhdated using stress tests The use of
reassurance also acts as to mitigate hquidity sk, the effect of the treaties being to hmit the Society's hability for
the overall sums assured, with a recovery being made from the remnsurance counterparty for that element of the
claim covered by the treaty Whilst iming differences can anse between the payment of claims and reimbursement
by remsurance counterparties, Society seeks to ensure that these are accommodated trom cash pools and intra
group facilities

With-profits Exposure to hquidity risk may anse 1f the profile of investment assets held to meet obligations to
With-profit policyholders 1s not aligned with the matunty profile of policies, or the profile does not adequately take
account of the nghts of policyholders to exercise options or guarantees to specified early sumrender terms or
minimum rates of return

Liquidity nisks associated with With-profit business are managed through the analysis of the maturity profile of the
fund taking account of projected future levels of bonus, policyholders reasonable expectations and projected early
withdrawals, and ensuring that an appropriate proportion of the fund 1s held in cash or other readily realisable
assets to meet each tranche of maturiues and anticipated early withdrawals as they fall due Where policyholders
have discretion to require early payment of policy proceeds (for example by requesting a surrender value),
appropnate contractual safeguards are m place to ensure that the fund and remaining policyholders are not
disadvantaged should a material number of policyholders exercise this discretion

Unit Linked business Investment nsks associated with unit linked business, including those associated with
liquidity, are generally borne by the holders of umits 1n these funds Liquidity nsk specifically anses for unit
holders 1n that certain asset classes 1 which the funds invest such as property m certain market conditions may not
be readily reahisable or only realisable in a specified timeframe at a diminution of value Liquidity risks associated
with these asset classes are documented and communicated to customers in point of sale product hiterature Product
terms & conditions also lighlight that for certain product types that include asset classes that may be illiquid, the
Group retains the right to defer the possessing of fund wiathdrawal requests for up to s1x months, should underlying
assets need to be realised to meet payment requests To minimise the need to invoke these terms, the funds seek to
maintain sufficient holdings mn cash assets to meet foreseeable withdrawal activity
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34. Firnancial risk management (continued)

34.8 Liquudity risk (continued)

The Group's Treasury function manages the banking relationships, capital raising activities, overall cash and
hiquadity position and the payment of dividends for all companies in the Group including Society The Group seeks
to manage 1its corporate funds and Liqudity requirements on a pooled basis and to ensure the Group maintamns
sufficient liquid assets and standby facihties to meet a prudent estimate of 1ts net cash outflows In additon, 1t
ensures that, even under adverse conditions, the Group has access to the funds necessary to cover surrenders,
withdrawals and matuning liabilities The Group has 1n place a £960m syndicated borrowing facility, expiring 1n
2012, which provides flexibility in the management of the Group's hquidity Society has a borrowing facility of
£500m from Legal & General Group Plc, which expires 1n 2012

34.9 Sensitivity analysis )
The objective of embedded value 1s to provide shareholders with realistic information on the financial position and
current performance of the Society

The methodology requires assets of an mnsurance company, as reported m the primary financial statements, to be
attributed between those supporting the covered business and the remainder The methed accounts for assets in the
covered business on an European Embedded Value (EEV) basis

Cash flow projections are determuned using realistic assumptions for each component of cash flow and for each
policy group Future economic and imvestment return assumptions are based on conditions at the end of the
financial year Future investment returns are projected based on an assumed 1nvestment return aitributed to assets at
their market value The assumed discount and inflation rates are consistent with the investment return assumptions

The table below shows the effect of alternative assumptions on the long term embedded value, prepared in
accordance with the guidance 1ssued by the CFO Forum 1n October 2005, and are different to the numbers reported
on a UK GAAP basis

The Group uses embedded value (EV)} financial information to manage and monttor performance, and hence the
financial nisks, as 1t 1s believed to provide information about the value which 1s being created from Society's

msurance business
Effect of embedded value
Embedded 1% lower 1% higher 1% higher
value risk risk 1% lower 1% higher equity/
atend discount discount interest interest  property
period rate rate rate rate yields
£m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2010 6,877 420 (363) 187 170y 9
As at 31 December 2009 6,026 370 (322) 29 (52) 106
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34. Financial nsk management (continued)

34.9 Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Embedded 10% lower 5% lower

value equity/ 10% lower 10% lower mortality/

atend property maintenance lapse morbidity

period values expenses sensitivity sensitivity

£m fm £m £m £m

As at 31 December 2010 6,877 (182) 78 85 (123)
As at 31 December 2009 6,026 {148) 68 74 (99)

Detailed projection assumptions including, mortality, persistency, morbidity and expenses, reflect recent
operating experience and are reviewed annuaily Allowance 1s made for future improvements 1 annuitant
mortality based on experience and externally published data Favourable changes in operating experience are
not anticipated until the improvement 1n experience has been observed

All services relating to UK covered business are charged on a cost recovery basis, with the exception of
imvestment services provided to Society, which have been charged at market referenced rates since 1 July 2007
Profits ansing on the provision of these services are valued on a "look through" basis

UK assumptions

The assumed future pre-tax returns on fixed interest and RPI linked securities are set by reference to the
portfolio yield on the relevant backing assets held at market value at the end of the reporting period The
calculated return takes account of demvauves and other credit mstruments mn the mvestment portfolio
Indicative yields on the portfolio, excluding annuities withing Legal & General Pensions Limited (LGPL), but
after allowance for long term default risk, are shown below

For annuities, separate returns are calculated for new and existing business Indicative combined yields, after
allowance for long term default risk and the following additional assumptions, are also shown below These
additional assumptions are

1 Where cash balances are held at the reporting date 1n excess of or below strategic mnvestment gumidelines, then
1t 18 assumed that these cash balances are immedately mvested, or disinvested at current yields

1 Where mterest rate swaps are used to reduce risk, 1t 15 assumed that these swaps will be sold before expiry
and the proceeds reinvested in corporate bonds with a redemption y1eld 0 70% p a (0 70% p a at 31 December
2009) greater than the swap rate at that time (1 ¢ the long term credit rate)

m Where remvestment or disinvestment 18 necessary to rebalance the asset portfolio in line with projected
outgo, this 1s also assumed to take place at the long term credit rate above the swap rate at that ume

The returns on fixed and index-linked securities are calculated net of an allowance for default nsk which takes
account of the credit rating, outstanding term of the securtties and mcrease n the expectation of credit defaults
over the economc cycle The allowance for corporate secunues expressed as a level rate deduction from the
expected returns was 29bps at 31 December 2010 (40bps at 31 December 2009)
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34. Financial risk management (continued)

34 9 Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Econonuc assumptions 2010 2009

% p.a. %opa
Equity nisk premium 35 35
Property nisk premium 2.0 20

Investment return

Gilts

- Fixed interest 34-40 40
- RPI linked 41 45
Non gilts

- Fixed interest 36-50 44-62
Equities 75 80
Property 60 65
Long term rate of return on non prefit annuties remsured to LGPL 55 61
Risk free Rate' 4.0 45
Risk margin 33 35
Risk discount rate (net of tax) 7.3 80
Inflatton

- Expenses/earmings 41 46
- Indexation 3.6 36

"The nisk free rate 15 the gross redemption yield on the 15 year gilt index (31 December 2009 20 year gilt
- giltindex)

(1) Assets are valued at market value

{n) Future bonus rates have been set at levels which would fully utilise the assets supporting the
policyholders' portion of the with-profits business The proportion of profits denved from with-profits
business allocated to shareholders has been assumed to be 10% throughout

(m) The value of in-force business reflects the cost, including adnunistration expenses, of providing for
benefit enhancement or compensation in relation to certain products

(1v) Other actuanal assumptions have been set at levels commensurate with recent operating expenence,
including those for mortality, morbidity, persistency and mantenance expenses (excluding the
development costs referred to below) These are normally reviewed annually

An allowance 1s made for future improvements 1n annumtant mortality based on expenence and externally
published data Male annuitant mortality is assumed to improve in accordance with 100% of CMI2009
Working Paper 41, with a mmmum annual improvement of 1 5% for future expenence, and 2 0% for
statutory reserving Female annmtant mortality 15 assumed to improve 1n accordance with 100% of
CMI2009, with a mumimum annual improvement of 1% for future expenence and 15% for statutory

reserving In each case, the annual improvement 1s assumed to reduce hinearly after age 85 to zero at age
120
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35

34.9 Sensitivity analysis (continued)

On this basis, the best estimate of the expectation of hie for a new 65 year old Male CPA annuitant 15 24 0 years
(31 December 2009 24 5 years) The expectation of hfe on the regulatory reserving basis 1s 25 6 years (31
December 2009 25 7 years)

{v) Development costs relate to investment n strategic systems and development capability that are charged to the

covered business Projects charged to the non-covered business are included within investment projects in Group
capital and financing

Management of capital resources

The Society’s total capital resources of £3 9bn (2009 £5 4bn) on a UK GAAP basis comprise ordnary equty
holders capital, £4 5bn (2009 £4 1bn) and Fund for Future Appropriation, £1 4bn (2009 £1 3bn)

The Society writes a range of long term msurance and mvestment business 1n the LTF This fund 1s segregated
from the Society’s other assets The fund includes participating (with-profits) business where policyholders and
sharcholders share m the risks and rewards, and non-participating (non profit) business, where the shareholders
receive the profits Capital 1n excess of an amount required to cover the liabilities 1s currently held both within
and outside of the Society LTE This capital provides support for new and existing non profit business within
Society

Capital management policies and objectives

The Society aims to manage 1ts capital resources to mamtain financial strength, policyholder security and relative
external financial strength ratings advantage The Society also seeks to maximuse 1ts financial flexibility by
maintainmg strong hquidity and by utillising a range of alternative sources of capital including equity, senior debt,
subordinated debt and remsurance

Capital measures

The Society measures 1ts capital on a number of different bases, mcluding those which comply with the
regulatory framework within which the Society operates and those which the directors consider most appropriate
for managing the business The measures used by the Society are

Accounting bases

Management manage capital and cash flow usage and to determune dividend paying capacity 1 accordance with
the pnimary financial statements prepared under UK GAAP

In addition, the directors behieve that the supplementary accounts to the Legal & General Group Plc report and
accounts, prepared using EEV principles, provide an alternative view of the Group’s long-term operations and
the value of the business to sharcholders Accordingly the Company’s net asset value and total capital employed
are also analysed and measured on thus basis and form part of the EEV Group accounts

Regulatory bases

The financial strength of the Society 15 measured under local regulatory requirements (see below) One of these
regulatory measures, Individual Capital Assessment (ICA), measures capital using risk based techmques, and
provides a measure of economic capital
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315, Management of capital resources (continued)

Basis of regulatory capital and corresponding regulatory capital requirements

Required capital for the life business 1s based on the rules of the FSA Society must hold assets in excess of the
higher of two amounts, the first being calculated using the FSA rules (Pillar 1), the second being an economic
capital assessment by Society which 15 reviewed by the FSA (Pillar 2, otherwise known as ICA)

The public Pillar 1 capital calculation 1s calculated by applying fixed percentages to liabilities and sums assured
at nsk There are further stress tests for participating liabilities as measured n the Realistic Balance Sheet, which
may mcrease the required capital

The private Pillar 2 caputal calculation 15 an assessment of the economuc capital required to ensure that the
company can meet 1ts habilines, with a high likelihood, as they fall due This 15 achieved by stochastic modelling
and scenarto testing  The result 1s reviewed and may be modified by the FSA

Society has not breached any regulatory capital requirements at any tune during the year
Avatlable regulatory capital resources

Capatal resources available to meet the UK capital requirements are determined using FSA valuation rules The
asset valuation rules are based on UK GAAP, adjusted for both admusstbihty Limuts and specific valuauon
differences Society’s regulatory capital position statement 1n the table below sets out the different sources of

capital held within the Soctety Society’s total available capital resources, based on the unaudited draft’ FSA
returns, are £4 9bn (2009 £4 3bn) of which £1 8bn (2009 £1 5bn) 1s held by the LTF

The total available capital resources of the Society’s with-profits business of £1 0bn (2009 £08bn) 1s
determined 1n accordance with the realistic balance sheet rules prescnbed by the FSA The capital resources
reflect the surplus 1 that part of the fund whach 15 11 excess of any constructive obligation to policyholders The
liabihities withun the consolidated balance sheet do not include the amount representing the shareholders’ share of
future bonuses However, for capital reporting, the shareholders’ share 1s deducted from capital resources 1n the
capital statement

At 31 December 2010 the reahstic value of the UK partrcipating liabilities was £14 2bn (2009 £14 1bn) under
the FSA realistic capital regime The excess of realistic assets over realistic habilites was £1 Obn (2009 £0 8bn)

1 The FSA returns are audrted and filed subsequent to the finalisation of these financial statements
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Regulatory capital position statement

Non Share-
With profit Total  holders’
profits SRC life equity Total
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010

As at 31 December 2010 £m £m £m £m £m
Ordinary shareholders' equity outside the LTF' - - - 3,112 3,112
Ordmary shareholders’ equity held in the LTF - 1,352 1,352 - 1,352
Capital and reserves attributable to
ordinary eguity holders of the Company - 1,352 1,352 3,112 4,464
Adjustments onto regulatory basis'
Fund for Future Appropriation 1,446 1,446 1,446
Other (493) (507) (1,000} (40)  (1,040)
Total available capital resources 953 845 1,798 3,072 4,870
UK GAAP liability analysis:
UK participating hiabilities on realistic basis
- Options and guarantees 768 - 768 - 768
- Other policyholder obligations 13,431 28 13,459 13,459
Fund for Future Appropriation 1,446 - 1,446 - 1,446
Value of in-force non-participating contracts (337) (337 - (337)
Participating contract liabilities 15,308 28 15,336 - 15,336
Unit linked non-participating life assurance habilities 564 522 1,086 - 1,086
Non-linked non-participating life assurance liabilities 2,062 24,796 26,858 - 260,858
Unit linked non-participating investment contract habihities 8,677 17,214 25,891 - 25,891
Non-participating contract liabilities 11,303 42,532 53,835 - 53,835

1 Figures extracted from draft unaudited regulatory returns
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35. Management of capital resources {continued)

Regulatory capital position statement (conthnued)

As at 31 December 2009

Ordinary shareholders' equity outside the LTF'
Ordinary shareholders’ equity 1n the LTF
Capital and reserves attributable to
ordiary equty holders of the Company
Adjustments onto regulatory basis'

Fund for Future Approprniation

Other

Total available capital resources

UK GAAP Lability analysis:

UK participating liabilities on realistic basis
- Options and guarantees

- Other policyholder obligations

Fund for Future Appropnation

Value of in-force non-participating contracts

Participating contract habilites

j Unit linked non-participating Life assurance habilities

| Non-linked non-participaung life assurance habilities

Unit linked non-participating investment contract habilities
Non-participating contract liabilities

1 Figures extracted from draft unaudited regulatory returns
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Non Share-
With profit Total holders’

profits SRC life equity  Total
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009
£m £m £m Em £m

- - - 2,830 2,830

- 1,290 1,290 - 1,290

- 1,290 1,250 2,830 4,120
1,284 - 1,284 - 1,284
{443) (602) (1,045) (62) (1,107)
841 688 1,529 2,768 4,297
723 - 723 - 723
13,391 33 13,424 - 13,424
1,284 - 1,284 - 1,284
(328) (328) - (328)
15,070 33 15,103 - 15,103
554 518 1,072 - 1,072
1,953 21,811 23,764 - 23,764
8,152 15,328 23,480 - 23,480
10,659 37,657 48,316 - 48316
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35. Management of capital resources (continned)

Available regulatory capital resource risks

The Society’s available capital resources are sensitive to change in market condittons, due to both changes 1 the
value of the assets and to the effect that changes in investment conditions may have on the value of the hab:ilines
Capital resources are also sensitive to assumptions and experience relating to mortality and morbidity and, to a
lesser extent, expenses and persistency

The most significant sensitivities arise from the following four risks

()

(1)

{11}

(av)

market nsk i relation to UK participating business which would crystatlise 1f adverse changes in the value
of the assets supporting this business could not be fully reflected 1n payments to policyholders because of
the effect of guarantees and options The capital position of this business would also deteriorate 1f increases
to the market cost of derivatives resulted 1n an increase 1n the Lability for guarantees and options 1n the
realistic balance sheet

market risk 1n relation to the UK annuity business, which would crystallise 1f the return from the fixed
interest investments supporting this business were lower than that assumed for reserving The majonity of the

UK annuity business 1s reasssured to Legal & General Pensions Linuted

mortality risk 1n relation to the UK annuity business, which would crystallise 1f the mortaluy of annuitants
improved more rapidly than the assumptions used for reserving

mortality risk in relation to UK term assurance business, which would crystallise 1f mortality of the lives
msured was higher than that assumed, possibly because of an epidemic
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35. Management of capital resources (continued)

Movements in life business regulatory capital resources
The movement in the hife business regulatory capital resources 1s shown below

Meovements in life business capital resources

Non Share-

With profit Total holders'
profits SRC life equity Total
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
£m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 841 688 1,529 2,768 4,297
Effect of investment variations 210 76 286 - 286
Effect of changes in non-economic assumptions (41} 58 17 - 17
Changes 1n regulatory requirements - - - - -
New business an a7 94) - 94)
Cash distributions - (150) (150) 150 -
Other factors (40) 250 210 154 ! 364
Balance at 31 December 953 845 1,798 3,072 4,870

1 Other factors i Shareholders' equity include movement in revaluation reserve £214m, paymeni of dividend
(£300m), movemnent 1 madmissable assets and valnanon differences £21m and net movement m profit and loss
account £218m

36. Bonuses

The aggregate value of the bonuses declared on with-profit policies 1 the year was £411m (2009 £413m)

37. Post balance sheet event

On 11 March 2011 the directors of Legal & General Pensions Limited, under the contingent loan agreement,
approved a payment to Society equivalent to £375m 1n respect of surplus generated duning 2010 Whalst there 1s
no requirement under the contingent loan agreement to make any repayment as accumulated operating losses sull
exist within LGPL, because there were sufficient distributable reserves, it was agreed that this payment should be
made
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38. Subsidiary undertakings

The subsidiary undertakings of Legal & General Assurance Soctety Limited are histed below Each
undertaking operates mainly 1n 1t$ country of incorporation and has only one class of 1ssued ordinary shares,
unless stated otherwise

Nature of business
Holding Company
Holding Company

Held directly by the Company
City & Urban Developments Limuted
Insurebeam Limsted

Incorporated in
England & Wales
England & Wales

Legal & General (Meteor) Limuted Dormant Company England & Wales
Legal & General Direct (Holdings) Limited » Dormant Company England & Wales
Legal & General Estate Agencies Limited Holding Company England & Wales
Legal & General Insurance Limuted : Insurance Company England & Wales
Legal & General International (Holdings) Linuted Holding Company England & Wales
Legal & General Investment Management Dormant Non-trading England & Wales

(Holdings) Limuted

Legal & General Pensions Lamited Insurance Company England & Wales

Legal & General Professional Trust Services Limited Insurance Company England & Wales
Legal & General Retail (Holdings) Limited Holding Company England & Wales
Legat & General Shellco (No 1} Lumited Dormant Company England & Wales

Natonwide Lafe Limuted
The Cavendish Land Company Limuted

Insurance Company England & Wales
Investment Holding Company England & Wales

Held indirectly through subsiudiary undertakings

Banner International Holdings BV Dormant Company Netherlands
Banner Life Insurance Company Limuted Dormant Company England & Wales
Bndge End Computers Limuted Dormant Company England & Wales
Commercial International Life Company SAE Life Insurance Egypt

Glanfield Secunities Lamuted

Infoplacement fr

Key Consultants Mortgages Nationwide Eimited
Key Mortgage & Property Limuted

Non-trading

Management Company

Non-trading

Leasehold Property

England & Wales
France

England & Wales
England & Wales

Key Surveyors Nationwide Limited Non-trading England & Wales
Legal & General "Holdings" (France) Holding Company France

Legal & General Asset Management (France) Investment Company France

Legal & General Bank (France) Financial Services France

Legal & General Deutschland Service-GmbH Financial Services Germany

Legal & General Direct Limated Dormant Company England & Wales
Legal & General Finance Europe BY Dormant Company Netherlands
Legal & General GI Computer Services Limited Dormant Company England & Wales
Legal & General Healthcare Limited Dormant Company England & Wales
Legal & General International Lamited Holding Company England & Wales
Legal & General Investment Trust Larmited Non-trading England & Wales
Legal & General Nederland Beleggingen B V Financial Services Netherlands
Legal & General Nederland Exploitatie Maatschappy Real Estate Netherlands

BV

Legal & General Nederland Levensverzekenng Long term business Netherlands
Maatschappy N V

Legal & General Nederland Vastgoed Maatschappy) Real Estate Netherlands

BV
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38. Subsidiary undertakings (continued)

Held indirectly through subsudiary undertakings Nature of business
Legal & General Overseas Holdings B V Holding Company
Legal & General Overseas Holdings Limited Holding Company
Legal & General Retail (Holdings} Limited Holding Company
Legal & General Shellco (No 1) Limated Dormant Company
Legal & General Surveying Services Limited Surveying Services
Legal and General {(France) SA Life Insurance
Legal et General Risques Divers (France) Insurance Company
Southgate Associates Limited Dormant Company
Tringham Housing Limited Dormant Company

Incorporated in
Netherlands
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
France

France

England & Wales
England & Wales

I Legal & General Durect (Holdings) Limited has both Ordinary A and Ordinary B shares in issue All shares are held by Legal and General Assurance Society Limited

2 Legal & Genera! Insurance Limited has both Ordinary and Preference shares inissue Al shares are held by Legal and General Assurance Soczety Lumited

3 Legal and Generat Assurance Society Lirmted has an indireet holding of 35% of the 1ssued shares of Commercial Imemananal Life Company SAE

Unless stated above, all subsidianes are 100% owned and all have a 31 December financial year end
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